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MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF

DIRECTORS

Dear shareholders, partners, customers, and employees of 911 Group JSC,

On behalf of the Board of Directors and
Management Board of 911 Group Joint Stock
Company (NOT1), I would like to extend my warmest
greetings and best wishes for health, happiness,
and success to our shareholders, customers,
partners, and all employees!

In 2024, the world situation continues to evolve in
a complex and unpredictable manner with many
risky and uncertain factors. Military conflicts
continue to escalate, strategic competition
between major countries becomes increasingly
fierce, many countries strengthen trade
protection policies, public debt and budget
deficits increase, some major economies decline,
and global supply chains are locally broken,
affecting world peace, stability, and economic
growth. However, the world economy is gradually
stabilizing as global trade in goods improves
again, inflationary pressures gradually decrease,
financial market conditions continue to loosen,
and the labor market recovers positively.

Vietnam's economy has maintained remarkable
growth, with GDP increasing by 7.09% in 2024,
among the few countries with high growth in
the region and the world. The main driving force
comes from export activities when the value
reached 4055 billion USD, up 14.3% over the
same period. During the year, the State Bank of
Vietnam was flexible in responding to exchange
rate pressure. Inflation was controlled at 3.63%,
actively supporting economic growth. However,
fiscal policy encountered difficulties when public
investment disbursement by the end of 2024 only
reached 72.9% of the plan, especially the delay
in progress at key national transport projects.

NO1
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With the orientation of "IMPROVING PRODUCT
VALUE - STRENGTHENING CUSTOMER TRUST",
the Management Board and all employees of
the Company have been proactive, making
efforts to learn, constantly striving to overcome
difficulties, turning challenges into opportunities
through implementing many creative solutions,
being decisive in management, proactively
ensuring capital for project implementation,
the Company's business areas still achieved
remarkable results.

By the end of 2024, total sales and service revenue
reached VND 802 billion, profit after tax reached
VND 18.03 billion, completing 100% of the plan
and increasing by 7% over the same period.

Thanks to the collective efforts of the
Management Board and employees, the
Company's projects are being implemented
on schedule. Revenue from the provision of
machinery for construction and installation
activitiesaccountsforthe majority oftherevenue
structure. The electric taxi project is being
undertaken by a subsidiary and is expected to
be put into operation from April 2025.

The Company considers the 2025-2026 period
to be a new development period. Therefore,
the Company has carefully developed business
strategies and solutions, ensuring success in
raising the Company to new heights and new
positions.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would
like to express my sincere gratitude to our
Shareholders, Customers and Partners who
have always accompanied us in the past and
hope to continue to receive your support and
companionship in the future.

Sincerely thanks!

GTY c6
T2AN 1
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OUTSTANDING FIGURES IN 2024 VISION, MISSION
& CORE VALUE

Total assets / Net revenue
. . S N
o 537,70 @ 802,35

Vision Mission
Become the most convenient Save time for customers
construction machinery and partners

supplier in Vietham

Profit after tax ' Charter capital

Y 18,0m ., 240u

‘ﬁ@?

Qi
A

Core value
NOTABLE AWARDS O o
ﬁi’fw Good people @7y Good products
Top 7 agents with the longest cooperation time
with XCMG Honest, ethical, dedicated, Good quality, suitable for usage
On the evening of November 27 2024, at professional, physically healthy needs and climate conditions in
the BAUMA exhibition party, 911 Group was and mentally strong in serving Viethnam
honored to receive a prestigious award from customers
XCMG Group. This award affirmed a strong,
effective and trustworthy relationship.
@ Good services @’ Good price

Top 20 outstanding dealers out of 300 global

dealers of XCMG Timely, professional, dedicated, Effective, reasonable, optimized

A testament to 9ll's tireless efforts and committed to long-term for customers

commitment to delivering the best value to excellence

customers. With the achievements at BAUMA
2024,911 Group continuestoaimtoaccompany - p
XCMG to bring breakthrough technology

solutions to meet the needs of infrastructure

development in Vietnam.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

General information

Trading name 911 Group Joint Stock Company Phone number 0944911911
Business registration certificate 0105207386 Website https:/911group.com.vn/
number
Charter capital 240.000.000.000 VND Securities code NO1
Owner's investment capital 240.000.000.000 VND
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- Logo 9 1 1
Phu Duc 1 Hamlet, Phu Dong Commune, Gia
Address N GROUP

Lam District, Hanoi, Vietham
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HISTORY OF FORMATION AND DEVELOPMENT

207

2016

2017

2021

2022

2023

2024

e e  —— e S SRMEEEEEEE ' -- M

911 Group Joint Stock
Company (911 Group
JSC), formerly known
as 911 Foundation
Equipment Joint
Stock Company, was
established on March
22,2011 under business
registration certificate
No. 0105207386 by
founders with over 15
years of experience

in trading, managing
and exploiting
construction
equipment. The main
business activity

is wholesale of
machinery, equipment
and other spare parts,
charter capital at the
time of establishment
was 3 billion VND,
equivalent to 300,000
shares, par value
10,000 VND/share.

NO1
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The Company
became the official
distributor of XCMG
(Xuzhou Construction
Machinery Group
Co.Ltd.) products

in Vietnam. The
Company became
the official distributor
of Atom (Zton

Group Corporation)
products in Vietnam.
The Company
increased its charter
capital to 45 billion
VND and changed

its name to 911 Group
Joint Stock Company
according to
Business Registration
Certificate No.
0105207386 issued
by the Hanoi
Department of
Planning and
Investment for

the 4th time on
December 21, 2016.

The company became
the official distributor
of KCP products (KCP
Heavy Industries)

in Vietnam. The
company increased
its charter capital

to 80 billion VND
according to business
registration certificate
No. 0105207386
issued by the

Hanoi Department
of Planning and
Investment, the 4th
change on July 19,
2017, and rented
additional premises
at 8 Vo Nguyen

Giap Street, Vuon
Dua Quarter, Phuoc
Tan Ward, Bien

Hoa City, Dong Nai
Province to be used
as a warehouse in

the Southern region.
Aiming to become

a leading distributor
of construction
machinery and
equipment products
nationwide.

On December 15,
2021, the Company
officially received
the " Certificate

of registration

for initial public
offering" according
to Official Dispatch
No. 285/GCN-UBCK
dated December
15, 2021 of the
State Securities
Commission,
increasing the
charter capital to
VND 185 billion.

In January 2022, the
Company completed
the initial public
offering of shares
and officially became
a public company
according to Official
Letter No. 291/
UBCK-QLCB dated
January 14, 2022 of
the State Securities
Commission. By
November 2022, the
Company completed
the official procedures
for trading on

the stock market
according to Notice
No. 2065/TB-SGDHCM
dated November 18,
2022 of the Ho Chi
Minh Stock Exchange
with the reference
price on the first
trading day being VND
10,000/share.

On December 20,
2023, the Company
will pay 2022 cash
dividends at a rate of
5% of par value (1 share
receives 500 VND)

On June 22, 2024,
company held Annual
General Meeting of
Shareholders 2024. On
November 23, 2024
Company held the
2024 Extraordinary
General Meeting of
Shareholders. On
December 20, 2024,
the Company paid
2023 cash dividends
at a rate of 5% of par
value (1 share receives
500 VND)

NOI1 1
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LOCATION OF BUSINESS BUSINESS LINES

The operating area of 911 Group Joint Stock Company spans the whole country Business lines:

from North to South . Trading, repairing and maintaining lifting
equipment, cranes, pumping equipment,
concrete mixing equipment, infrastructure
equipment and equipment in the field of
sanitation and environment.
’ S - Construction machinery and construction
Concentrated in the provinces machinery spare parts for rent.
of Hanoi, Quang Ninh, Hai Main business products and services:
Duong, Ninh Binh, Hoa Binh, Electric taxi transportation service business in

Hai Phong, Ha Nam, Yinh the provinces: Dong Nai, Binh Duong and Ho
. Phuc, Tuyen Quang, Bac Ninh , Chi Minh City

Trading in forklifts and loaders

Plan to open a processing and manufacturing
factory for crane products in Thanh Liem
Industrial Park, Ha Nam Province

------ Central region- - - - -
Concentrated in the provinces

of Nghe An, Thanh Hoa, Quang ! GOVERNANCE MODEL AND
ngal Quang Nam. Quang BUSINESS ORGANIZATION

]
N

Binh, Quang Tri, Khanh Hoa,

Da Nang, and Hue City
---------------------- ’ 911 Group Joint Stock Company is currently organized and operating under the governance

model stipulated in Point a, Clause 1, Article 137 of the Law on Enterprises. The governance
structure includes: the General Meeting of Shareholders, the Board of Directors, the Supervisory
Board, and the General Director.

GENERAL MEETING OF
’ SHAREHOLDERS

SUPERVISORY BOARD

’ ) ] s BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Concentrated in the provinces
of Ho Chi Minh City, Vung Tau,

|
[}
1
1
Lam Dong, Dong Nai, Binh !
:
1

Phuoc, Binh Thuan, Long An, BOARD OF MANAGERS

Dak Lak, Tra Vinh, Binh Duong )

Administration and
Accounting Department Human Resources Sales Department Service Department
Department

Import - Export
Department

NOI1 NOI1 13
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INTRODUCTION OF MANAGEMENT BOARD
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Working process

From 9/2006 to 3/2008
From 3/2008 to 11/2013
From 12/2013 to 4/2023
From 4/2023 to 9/2024
From 11/2024 to 2/2025

Mr. NGUYEN MANH HAI

Vice Chairman of Board of Directors

Year of birth: 1980
Qualification: Master of Baking - Finance

Credit officer at Mekong Delta Housing Development Bank
Head of Credit at Song Da Finance Joint Stock Company
Branch Manager at National Commercial Joint Stock Bank
General Director at Trimico Group Corporation

Vice Chairman of Board of Directors at 911 Group JSC

Working process

From 5/2013 to 12/2016
From 1/2017 to 06/2018
From 7/2018 to 4/2024

From 5/2017 to present

Mr. NGUYEN VAN BAC
Member of Board of Directors

Mr. NGUYEN XUAN THANH
Vice Chairman of Board of Directors

Year of birth: 1982
Qualification: Master of Economics

Working process

Sales Specialist at Vietnam National Coal and Mineral Industries
Group

General Director (in charge of Global Stone Export) at Sunflower
Vietnam Import Export JSC

From 10/2006 to 8/2010
From 10/2010 to 01/2011

From 08/2011 to 11/2017 Project Development Director at T&T Group

From 01/2018 to 06/2022 Vice Chairman of Board of Directors at Viet Son JSC

From 08/2022 to 09/2024 General Director at Sunflower T&T Vietnam Production & Import

Export Company
From 23/11 to present

Vice Chairman of Board of Directors at 911 Group JSC

NOI1
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Year of birth: 1990

Qualification: Mechanical Engineer

Working process

From 11/2014 to 5/2017

From 5/2017 to present

Working process
From 6/2006 to 2009
From 2009 to 2/2011
From 10/2011 to 4/2024

From 4/2024 to 6/2024

From 6/2024 to 2/2025
From 2/2025 to nay

- Major in Construction Machinery

Mr. PHAM DINH THOAN

Member of Board of Drectors/ General Director

Year of birth: 1990
Qualification: Mechanical Engineer - Major in Construction Machinery

Sales staff at 911 Group JSC
Atom Division Sales Director at 911 Group JSC

Deputy General Manager at 911 Group JSC
Board Member at 911 Group JSC

Technical staff at 999 Equipment JSC
Technical Manager at 999 Equipment JSC

Mrs. NGUYEN THI THOM
Member of Board of Directors

Year of birth: 1983
Qualification: Bachelor of Finance and Accounting

Accountant at Tien Hoang Chemical 3SC
Chief accountant at Tien Hoang Chemical JSC

Board Member, Deputy General Director in charge of finance at
911 Group JSC

Board Member at 911 Group JSC

Chairman of the Board at 911 Group JSC NOI1
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Working process

From 4/2014 to 4/2017
From 5/2017 to present

Mr. NGHIEM DUC THUAN

Member of Board of Directors/ Deputy General Director

Year of birth: 1978

Qualification: Mechanical engineer - Construction machinery major

Working process
From 10/2001 to 6/2006

From 7/2006 to 7/2007
From 8/2007 to 12/2010

From 1/2011 to 2/2015
From 12/2016 to 4/2024
From 4/2024 to present

Mr. NGUYEN DUC HAI
Member of Board of Directors

Year of birth: 1989
Qualification: Mechanical Engineer - Major in Construction Ma-

Sales staff at 911 Group JSC

Board Member/ Head of Concrete Pump Department

Engineer, Deputy Head of Equipment Department at Bridge 14
Company

Engineer, Site Technician at Transportation Works Construction
JsC

Engineer, Technician, Planning Engineering Department at Van
Xuan JSC

Head of Planning Engineering at Van Xuan JSC
Sales Director at 911 Group JSC

Member of Board of Directors and Deputy General Director at 911
Group JSC

BOARD OF MANAGERS

Mr. PHAM DINH THOAN

Member of Board of Drectors/ General Director

Mr. NGHIEM DUC THUAN

Member of Board of Directors/ Deputy General Director

Detailed information is provided in the Board of Directors section

NOI1
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Mr. NGUYEN TRUNG HIEU

Deputy General Director

Qualification: Master of Finance

Working process

From 10/1996 to 12/2003

From 01/2004 to 12/2009

From 01/2010 to 12/2015

From 01/2016 to 12/2019

From 01/2020 to 1/2024

From 02/2024 to 05/2024

From 05/2024 to present

SUPERVISORY BOARD

Mrs. TRAN THI KIM DUNG

Head of Supervisory Board

Year of birth: 1996

Qualification: Bachelor of Accounting

Working process

From 6/2017 to 6/2018

From 3/2019 to 4/2020
From 4/2020 to 6/2024
From 6/2024 to present

Accountant, Financial Accounting Manager of the Corporation,
Member of the Board of Supervisors of Bao Viet Securities JSC

Financial and accounting manager of the General Company,
Head of Financial and accounting department of member com-
panies, Member of Technology Innovation Board

Deputy Head of Finance and Accounting Department, Head of
Transaction Department, PGBank Pham Hung, Hanoi

Assistant to General Director, Compliance Control, and Financial
Director of Hai Phat Capital Joint Stock Company, Member of
the Board of Supervisors of Traffic Construction Corporation 5
(CIENCO5)

Deputy General Director; Concurrently Deputy Director of APEC

Auditing Company Limited, Participates in management and
development of banking and insurance business

In charge of business development for Laos market, Business
Development Director

Deputy General Director in charge of finance and accounting

Accountant at 559 Long Bien Construction and Trading
Investment JSC

Accountant at Hi-Medic Company Limited
Accountant at GH Medical JSC
Head of Supervisory Board at 911 Group JSC

NOI1 17
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Mrs. TRAN NGOC ANH
Member of Supervisory Board

Year of birth: 1993
Qualification: Bachelor of Accounting

Working process

From 6/2018 to 11/2020 Accountant at Phu Xuan Construction and Trading Company
Limited

From 06/2022 to 05/2023 Accountant at ADDED-VALUE Joint Stock Company

From thang 06/2023 to 02/2024 Accountant at HC International Investment and Development
Company Limited

Member of Supervisory Board at 911 Group JSC

From 06/2024 to present

Mrs. LE THI LOAN

Member of Supervisory Board

Year of birth: 1978
Qualification: Bachelor of Accounting

Working process

From 6/2017 to 6/2023
From 6/2023 to present

General Accountant Gia Lam Construction and Trading JSC

Member of Supervisory Board at 911 Group JSC

CHIEF ACCOUNTANT

Mr. HOANG SON DANG
Chief Accountant

Year of birth: 1996
Qualification: Bachelor of Finance - Accounting

Working process

From 06/2022 to 31/05/2024
From 06/2022 to 12/2024

General Accountant at 911 Group JSC
Chief Accountant at 911 Group JSC

NOI1

18 2024 Annual Report

MARKET POSITION

911 Group Joint Stock Company has a tradition and
over 10 years of experience in the construction
industry and the supply of machinery and equipment
related to construction and project execution. Since
its establishment, 911 Group has continuously learned
from experience and equipped itself with the most
modern and advanced machinery to ensure the
smoothest and most efficient production operations.
The products provided by the Company are not only
of high quality but also competitively priced for both
individual and corporate customers. The Company
has invested in a wide range of machinery and
equipment and is ready to invest further for leasing or
selling to partners.

The Company's core competitive advantage is its
streamlined organizational and operational structure;
The Company's workforce has high technical expertise
and extensive experience.

Additionally, the modern machinery and technology
provided by the Company meet high-quality
standards and are supplied by leading global
construction equipment manufacturers such as
XCMG (China), KCP (South Korea), Zton (South Korea),
Zoomlion (China), and EP Equipment (China). As a
result, machinery and equipment failures are almost
nonexistent, ensuring high-quality products for
customers. The Company has been officially certified
asanauthorized distributor of construction machinery
from renowned brands, including XCMG—the largest
construction equipment manufacturer in China, Zton,
EP Equipment—one of the top companies in forklift
design and manufacturing, and KCP—one of the
three largest concrete pump truck manufacturers in
South Korea, holding a leading market share in the
industry.

Currently, the Company is continuing to actively
invest in equipment, innovate production technology,
improve labor skills, expand production scale as well
as consumption market to continue to consolidate
and enhance the Company's position compared to
other businesses in the same industry.

NOI1 19
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DEVELOPMENT ORIENTATION DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES
IN MEDIUM AND LONG TERM

MAIN OBJECTIVES

1
@]l Improving the system ( @ \

911 Group Joint Stock Company always
prioritizes the work of perfecting the
system while improving the management
capacity of officers and employees as well
as diversifying business products and

expanding the field of operation @2

Continuing to improve the system combined with innovation and digital
transformation contributes to improving the management capacity of officers and
employees, as well as diversifying the product and service portfolio, expanding the
business area. Firmly consolidating the brand of 911 Group Joint Stock Company, a
supplier of construction machinery productsin the top 10 in the Vietnamese market.

~

Revenue objective @2 Continue to promote the Company's image
and products to consumers through the
By 2025, the company expects revenue to reach 900 billion VND. @3 continuous efforts of the entire Board of
( \ Directors and employees of the Company
@3 Providing additional products Business activities are closely linked to

environmental protection, while always

In addition to the main products of excavators, self-propelled cranes, specialized improving and innovating production

cranes, concrete pump trucks,.. In 2025, the Company plans to provide additional technology to save energy, reduce material @4
product lines such as wheel loaders and forklifts. It is expected that these two product waste and reduce waste to the environment
lines will be added to the main product portfolio in the coming period. r \

Strengthen training and promote creativity
. among staff to increasingly increase the
Completing procedures @41: technological content in work, contributing

: : e to improvin roductivity and work
Complete procedures, apply for licenses, investment certificates, and start @5 P g b Y

construction of phase 1 of the Crane Manufacturing Factory project in cooperation ( \ efficiency
with Zton Group (Korea). The project is expected to go into operation and produce
the first crane product in the first quarter of 2026.

Comply with legal regulations on labor
safety, ensure workers' rights, increase
income, improve quality of life foremployees
@5 Operating taxi transportation service and workers

Expected to operate taxi transportation service before April 30, 2025 in the provinces
and cities: Dong Nai, Binh Duong and Ho Chi Minh City. @6

Actively participate in community activities,
contribute to social development, and

Enhancing human resource capacity @6

Sending officers and employees to study and receive new technology transfer for new enhance corporate reputation
generation construction machinery to serve construction activities at key national
projects and works in the near future.

NOI1
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GOALS IN 2025

Specific development goals in 2025

22

Continue to promote the Company's image,
products and services through the tireless
efforts of the entire team, management and
staff.

By 2025, the Company aims to reach revenue
of 900 billion VND.

Completing legal procedures and documents,
starting construction of phase 1 of the
crane manufacturing factory in Thanh Liem
Industrial Park, Ha Nam Province.
Construction machinery business remains
core business.

Put the taxi project into operation before April
30, 2025, operating in the provinces of Dong
Nai, Binh Duong and Ho Chi Minh City.
Providing new product lines including: wheel
loaders, forklifts

NO1
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Sending staff and workers to partner suppliers
to study and research new generation
construction machinery and construction
machines. Aiming to expand the range of
goods and products supplied to key projects
of the country.

Medium and long term goals

Expanding scale, improving competitiveness
and consolidating position as a top 10
construction machinery supplier in the
Vietnamese market

Strengthen digital transformation activities,
train and promote creativity of staff and
workers to increase the technology content in
work, contributing to improving productivity
and work efficiency.

Strictly comply with current legal regulations,
especially those related to workers and
occupational safety. Focus on workers,
improve the working environment and
increase income.

'//),//

o)
S2

Sustainable development goals

Actively participate in community activities
to contribute to social development and
enhance the position of the enterprise.
Expanding the scale of the electric taxi
fleet put into operation and expanding the
business area of electric taxi transportation
services (Green Taxi) in provinces and cities in
the Southeast and Southwest regions.
Aiming for sustainable development goals:
911 Group Joint Stock Company aims to create
long-term value for customers, employees,
partners and the community. Integrating
sustainable development goals into each
stage of production and business activities
based on the following viewpoints. First,
practicing responsible business. Second,
promoting diversity and fairness for each
partner that the Enterprise provides products
and services. Third is green commitment.

NOI1 >3
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ECONOMICS

RISK

According to the General Statistics Office, GDP
in 2024 will increase by 7.09% compared to the
previous year, only lower than the growth rates
of 2018, 2019 and 2022 in the 2011-2024 period.
In the total added value growth of the whole
economy, the agriculture, forestry and fishery
sector will increase by 3.27%, contributing
5.37%; the industry and construction sector
will increase by 8.24%, contributing 45.17%;
the service sector will
contributing 49.46%.

The agriculture, forestry, and fishery sector

increase by 7.38%,

maintained stable growth despite being

affected by natural disasters. Agriculture

grew by 2.94%, forestry by 5.03%, and

aquaculture by 4.03%.

The industry and construction sector
recovered strongly. The industrial sector
grew by 8.32%, including a 9.83% increase in
manufacturing and processing, and a10.05%
rise in electricity production. Meanwhile,
the mining sector decreased by 7.24%.
Theservicesectorcontinuedtogrowsteadily,
especially in key areas such as wholesale
and retail (up 7.96%), transportation and
warehousing (10.82%), accommodation and
food services (9.76%), and finance banking
insurance (7.11%)

Regarding GDP utilization:

increased by 6.57%;

gross capital formation rose by 7.20%.

Final consumption

Exports of goods and services increased
by 15.45%, while imports rose by 16.10%.

Risk to economic growth rate —————e@ Inflation risk

According to the General Statistics Office,
the Consumer Price Index (CPI) in 2024 in-
creased by 3.63%, which is lower than the
target set by the National Assembly, mainly
driven by the following factors:
Food and beverage services increased
by 4.03%, with rice prices rising signifi-
cantly by 15.93%.
Housing, electricity, water, fuel, and
construction materials rose by 5.2%,
mainly due to adjustments in residen-
tial electricity rates and rental prices.
Pharmaceuticals and healthcare ser-
vices increased by 7.16% following price
adjustments under Circular No.22/2023/
TT-BYT (dated 17/11/2023) and Circular
No. 21/2024/TT-BYT (dated 17/10/2024)
issued by the Ministry of Health.
Education rose by 5.37% due to in-
creased tuition fees in several localities.
Transportation
crease of 0.76%.

recorded a slight in-

The postal and telecommunications group
decreased by 1.02%, helping to curb CPI
growth.

Core inflation in 2024 increased by 2.71%,
lower than the overall CPI growth. The main
influencing factors excluded from core in-
flation are food, electricity, education, and
healthcare.

The Company’'s leadership has proactively
strengthened cost control and price volatil-
ity management of input materials to miti-
gate inflation risks, thereby ensuring stable
and effective business operations.

® Interest rate

Besides inflation, interest rates are also
a very important financial indicator that
the company must always monitor and
in order

regularly update to develop

appropriate business and investment

strategies.

Implementing Directive No. 12/CT-TTg of
the Prime Minister, with the key task of
promoting socio-economic development,
the State Bank of Vietnam continues
to direct a reduction in lending interest
rates, proactively implementing solutions
to promote credit growth, improving
access to capital for the economy in an
efficient, feasible, and timely manner. The
average lending interest rates of domestic
commercial banks for both new and
existing loans are in the range of 6.9% to
9.3% per year. The average lending interest
rate in VND for priority sectors is about 3.6%
per year, lower than the maximum interest
rate prescribed by the State Bank (4% per
year). Credit growth continues to be closely
controlled to reduce risks, ensure system
safety, and focus on promoting economic

growth.

Credit growth of the economy also showed
positive signs. As of December 25, 2024,
credit growth of financial institutions
increased by 9.06% (comparedtol11.19%inthe
same period last year); credit growth for the
entire economy reached 13.82% (compared
to 11.48% in the same period last year).

f NO1
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LEGAL
RISK R °

Changes in laws and administrative procedures in the current business
sector will directly affect the Company's business operations. However,
with the general development trend of the economy, the Government
is also gradually perfecting the legal system, creating more openness
in administrative procedures to serve the increasing needs of society.

The current Vietnamese legal system is still in the process of completion,
the application of the law to business activities is still difficult, untimely
and inconsistent; there are still many complicated and overlapping
regulations in the legal system in general. The Company's business
activitiesare subject tothe regulation of many different legaldocuments
such as the Enterprise Law, Investment Law, Commercial Law, etc. It is
expected that these decrees will still need to be amended to be more
suitable and stricter in the coming time, thus also partly affecting the
production and business activities of the Company.

However, the positive side of these changes can be seen in creating an increasingly strict and scientific
legal corridor, in line with the legal system and international practices, creating conditions to attract
foreign investment capital as well as helping domestic production and business activities to proceed

more smoothly.

As a business operating in the form of a joint stock company, the operations of 911 Group Joint Stock
Company are regulated by a system of legal documents related to enterprise law, tax law, regulations on
joint stock companies... However, because the legal system is in the process of completion and stability
is not high, changes in policy can always occur, which can more or less affect the operations of the

business.

Legal risks are related to changes and additions to policies and legal documents related to land
management, environmental protection, or tax laws. Changes in management and operation policies
from competent authorities will directly impact the Company's business operations.

Exchange rate fluctuations and import costs: Most of the machinery,

INDUSTRY
SPECIFIC *——o
RISK

equipment and spare parts in Vietnam are imported, so when the
foreign exchange rate fluctuates, the cost of goods may increase.
Import tax policies and logistics costs may also change, affecting
selling prices and profit margins.

Tax and customs policy changes: Policies related to import tax, value-
added tax (VAT), and customs regulations may change, impacting
business operations. Complex or changing import procedures can
delay the supply chain process.

High competition and price pressure: There is strong competition

from both domestic and foreign businesses. The appearance of
counterfeit, fake or unofficial hand-carried goods reduces the
competitive advantage of legitimate businesses. Customers tend to
look for cheap prices, putting pressure on profit margins.

NO1
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OTHER
RISKS

TECHNOLOGY
RISK

The advent of technology
is a major breakthrough
in the development of
mankind. In addition to
bringing many benefits, the
application of technology

still has many risks. i
Machinery and equipment i
lines are constantly E
improving, making old E
products quickly obsolete, |

causing inventory pressure.
Some equipment can be replaced by new technology

or automation trends, reducing demand for traditional
product lines. Therefore, businesses in the industry must
always collect information, update and continuously
innovate. If technology changes are slow, many businesses
will be on the brink of bankruptcy.

To minimize technological risks, the Company always
proactively monitors and updates the development of
Science and Technology, applying it to the Company's
production and business activities. Machinery and
equipment are always imported by the Company from
reputable suppliers, ensuring consistency in quality and
technology. For outdated machinery that is no longer
suitable for market needs or has been fully depreciated,
the Company proactively applies liquidation measures
to recover capital to invest in new machinery, modern
technology, meeting the increasing demands of the
market.

Force majeure risks such as earthquakes, natural disasters, storms,
floods, fires, wars, epidemics, terrorism, etc, if any, will cause damage
to property and people and affect the company's business operations
on a large scale. To minimize damage, the company has entered into
insurance contracts for the company's machinery, equipment and
fixed assets.

NOI1 57
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BUSINESS PERFORMANCE IN 2024

Implementation status compared to plan

Implementation Actual/ Plan

Unit Plan 2024
in 2024 (%)
Revenue billion VND 600 802 133.6%
Profit after tax billion VND 18 18.03 100%

Some financial indicators during the period 2022 - 2024

Unit: billion VND

. Proportion

Indicator 2022 2023 2024 2024/2023
Net revenus—:- from salt-:=s of goods 1325 611 802 121.21%
and rendering of services
Financial income 3 37 16 42.99%
Other income 2 2 1 66.70%
Cost of goods sold 1,229 576 749 129.92%
Selling expense 9 9 15 160.97%
General and administrative >7 19 19 98.02%
expenses N
Other expenses 5 0.663 1 172.79%
Net operating profit 52 20 25 128.26%
Profit after corporate 39 17 18 106.65%

income tax

NOI1
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. Regarding the implementation status compared to the plan:

With the efforts of the Board of Directors and all employees of the company, 911 Joint
Stock Company has achieved the expected results, completing and exceeding the set plan.
Recognizing that the economic market is still facing many difficulties, in 2024, the Board
of Directors of 911 Group Joint Stock Company set a plan to achieve 600 billion VND for net
revenue and after-tax profit of 18 billion VND and submitted the plan to the 2024 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders for approval. However, with the tireless efforts, the Company
has exceeded the set plan. Net revenue in 2024 reached more than 800 billion VND, exceeding
the plan by 30%, after-tax profit reached 19 billion VND, exceeding the plan by 5%. This is a
proud business result that the company has achieved in a difficult year.

Regarding the business performance results during the year:

Net revenue from sales of goods and rendering of services: Increased by 31.21% compared
to 2023. This growth reflects the recovery efforts after the decline period, the company's
revenue in 2024 reached 802,345,438,436 VND, although it has not reached the revenue
threshold of 2022, but it also shows that in 2024, the Company has made great efforts and
tried to achieve a revenue level exceeding 30% compared to 2023 in the context of the
economy is still very harsh and extremely difficult.

Financial income: A sharp decrease of 57.01 %, showing a significant decrease in revenue
from financial investments. The company's financial revenue mainly comes from interest
on deposits and realized exchange rate differences. In 2024, interest on deposits decreased,
which is also the reason why revenue from deposits at banks also decreased, reducing the
company's financial revenue.

Other income: Decreased by 33.3%, showing a decrease in income from non-core activities,
due to a decrease in extraordinary income. The company's other income comes from the
liguidation of assets, obtained from late payment of contracts by partners. In 2024, the
company liquidated fewer assets, the company's partners were less late in paying contracts,
showing that the company's capital was less occupied for a long time.

Selling expenses: Increased sharply by 60.97%, showing that the company is increasing
marketing, distribution, or market expansion activities

General and administrative expenses: A slight decrease of 2%, reflecting better control of
administrative expenses, helping the company improve operating efficiency

Net operating profit: Increased by 28.26% , showing that the company's core business is
recovering, but the growth rate is not high.

Profit before tax: Up 11.5% , reflecting improved business performance but still affected by
rising costs.

Profit after corporate income tax: Reached VND 18.03 billion , up 6.65% compared to 2023,
showing that the company is still profitable but the growth rate is slower than net profit,
due to the cost burden.

The company has made progress in recovering revenue and profit after a period of decline.
However, the sharp increase in selling expenses and financial expenses poses a challenge to
maintaining and improving profit margins.

NOI1 2
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ORGANIZATION AND HUMAN RESOURCE

Biographical information of the members of the Board of Managers

Mr.
PHAM DINH THOAN e—e@

Mr.
NGHIEM DUC THUAN o———o

Mr.
NGUYEN TRUNG HIEUg——e

NOI1
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Position: General Director

Year of birth: 1990

Nationality: Vietnam

Qualification: Mechanical Engineer - Specialized in
Construction Machinery

Number of personally owned shares: 185,000 shares

Position: Deputy General Director

Year of birth: 1978

Nationality: Vietnam

Qualification: Mechanical Engineer - Specialized in
Construction Machinery

Number of personally owned shares: 32,500 shares

Position: Deputy General Director

Year of birth: 1974

Nationality: Vietnam

Qualification: Master of Finance

Number of personally owned shares: O share

Labor structure

By qualification level

n Undergraduate and post- 41
graduate level
College level, professional
N . . 5
intermediate
[ Unskilled labor 3
By type of workforce
Direct labor
O 49
Indirect labor 0
By gender
B Male 3
B Female 15
By management level
B Senior management S)
I Middle management 10
[ Branch level management 3
I Specialist, staff 28
Other workers 3
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Summary of human resource policies

Working regime

Working hours: The Company
organizes  working time not
exceeding 8 hours/day and 48 hours/
week. Depending on conditions,
workload, and task performance
capacity, the Company may apply a
40-hour workweek (5 working days),
with Saturdays and Sundays off. In
case of overtime due to production
and business requirements,
additional working hours shall not
exceed 4 hours per day and 200
hours per year.

Leave, holidays, and Tet:
Implemented in accordance with
the Labor Code. Employees are
entitled to leave on public holidays,
Tet, personal leave, sick leave, and
maternity leave as stipulated by law.
Specifically: 12 days of annual leave
foremployeesworking under normal
conditions, 14 days of annual leave
for employees working in hazardous,
toxic, or dangerous environments,
other allowances and welfare

policies are applied as regulated.

Salary, bonus and welfare policy

Employees of the Company participate
in and receive benefits related to
social insurance, health insurance,
and unemployment insurance in
accordance with legal regulations. In
addition, depending on the assignment,
employees also receive relevant
allowances. The Company's salary
payment is carried out based on the
principle of distribution according to
labor, working hours, and assigned
positions, with salaries paid based on
the nature of the job and the position
held. The Company always ensures
satisfactory salary payments (not limited
to a maximum level) for individuals with
talent, qualifications, expertise, and
significant contributions, in order to
create motivation and encouragement,
promoting employees to continuously
improve labor productivity, work quality,
and fulfill assigned responsibilities.
Salary and bonus payments are
implemented democratically and

transparently.

Human resource training and development policy

The Company has established a training
policy that is publicly and transparently
communicated to all employees.
The training regime is developed in
alignment with job requirements.
Recruitment is carried out publicly,
transparently, and fairly in accordance
with State regulations. Depending on
local characteristics, social conditions,
and the

demands at each period, when there is

Company’s production
a shortage of workers in any occupation,
the Company will recruit accordingly.

Every new employee undergoes an
onboarding training course, including:
general introduction to the Company,
its culture, organizational structure,
corporate governance, work conditions,
job descriptions, and assigned
responsibilities. New employees are also
guided on internal rules and assigned

tasks.

Employee recruitment policy

- Recruitment objectives:

The Company attracts, recruits, and assigns
personnel with qualifications and capabilities
appropriate to meet the requirements of
production and business. Recruitment
conducted with transparency and fairness,
aiming to optimize human resources and create
opportunities for employee development.

- Recruitment principles:

+ Recruitment is based on actual needs and
aligned with the Company's development

strategy.

+ Transparent, fair, non-discriminatory in terms

of gender, religion, and region.

+ Priority is given to candidates with experience
and capabilities suitable for the job position.
+ Candidatesareevaluated based on professional

is

criteria, working skills, and personal qualities.

The average training hours per year are
60-70 hours per employee.

Skill  development and continuous
learning programs are designed to
support employees in ensuring job
performance and career growth.
Based on the Company's training
needs and development orientation,
personnel planning, and the proposals
of departments and specialized units,
the Human Resources Department
coordinates and determines training
needs each year. For unexpected
training needs, departments submit
a request to the General Director for
review and approval. Once the plan
is approved, the Human Resources
Department  will coordinate  with
related departments to organize the
training, including: training schedule,
timing, location, list of participants,
budget.

training content, and

NOI1 2c
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INVESTMENT AND PROJECTS
IMPLEMENTATION STATUS

Information regarding projects carried out in 2024

Project name 9 Taxi

By 2026, a total of 800 vehicles, 04 2S service workshop
complexes + charging stations + sales points, GF used car rental

Tau

Commercial operation plan March 2025
and timing

Project status and progress On schedule (911 Taxi operating in March 2025, Service
during the year workshop + sales point operating in April 2025)

. THUE VA MUA 2.200 XE DIEN VINFAST
GIUA CONG TY GSM VA CONG TY CO PHAN TAP DOAN 911

Ha N naay 26 thang 10 nAm 2024

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

In 2024, the company has no subsidiaries and associated companies

NOI1
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FINANCIAL SITUATION

FINANCIAL SITUATION

Unit: billion VND

% increase/

Indicators 2023 2024

decrease
Total assets 438 538 22,64%
Netrevenue o sz 2%
Netoperating profit R 2% 18.07%
Other profit 1 0,183 (86,21%)
profitbeforetax " s
profitaftertax 6 e 665%
Dividendyieldrato 70996 v

The company has a recovery in 2024 with revenue and profit growing compared to 2023. Net
revenue increased sharply by 31.21%, helping to improve profits, leading to net profit from
business activities also increasing by more than 18% compared to 2023. Revenue from the
company's main business activities increased, showing that the company is always focused
on performing business activities effectively, promoting strengths in its main business areas.
In 2024, the company's other profits decreased compared to 2023, but looking at the overall
results, the company's after-tax profit still reached more than 18 billion VND, an increase of
6.65% compared to 2023.

MAJOR FINANCIAL INDICATORS

Solvency ratio

Indicators 2023 2024
Current ratio 1150 2.081
Quick ratio 1570 1.282

NOI1 27
2024 Annual Report



Capital structure ratio

Liabilities/ Total assets ratio 0.296 0.414

Liabilities/ Owner's equity ratio 0.421 0.709

Operation capacity ratio

Inventory turnover 4134 4935

Assets turnover 0.776 1.643

Profitability ratio

Profit after tax/Net revenue ratio 0.028 0.022

Profit after tax/ Owner's equityratio 0055 s
Profit after tax/Total assets ratio 003 0033
Operating profit/Net revenue ratio 003 0020
& 200214 Annual Report

SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE,
CHANGE IN EQUITY CAPITAL

STOCK INFORMATION

Stock name Shares of 911 Group Joint Stock Company
Stocktype Commonstock
stockcode o0
sharepice  10000WND/csphieu
lsting startdate  2smpoz2
Number ofsharesoutstanding 24000000shares
rotal tressuryshares  Oshare

Number of freely transferable shares 24000000

Number of shares subject to transfer  ogare

restrictions

SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE
Danh sdch cé déng tai ngay 31/12/2024

1 State shareholder 0 0%
", Founding shareholder/ FDI o 0%
shareholder

5 Blockholder 67421 48.64%
- “Domestic oz 4325%
S Foreign 1204900  T54%
4 othersharcholders 2325789 540%

- -gf-\;\;l:i;;) ----- - - -D-c-a-r;;(;;;l-c- - 1,782,689 51.36%
S “Foreign 543100  49.09%
tota. 24000000  100%
Ofwhich: -Domestc 2169800 237%
S “Foreign  1ss200 763%

NO1
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CHANGES IN OWNER'S CAPITAL

The maximum foreign ownership ratio at the company is 49%

_ Treasuary stock transactions

201 0 3000000000 [Initial capital contribution in
cash
____________________________________________________ I-s-s-t;;e““s-h-;;;s-“;o existing Current number of treasury shares: O shares
Ist time: May 2016 2,500,000 26,000,000,000 shareholders at a ratio of 323 In 2024, the company did not conduct any treasury stock transactions.

Issue shares to existing

2nd time: December 2016 1,900,000 45000000000 - s of 2619 N
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- Other securities
3rd time: June 2017 3,500,000 80,000,000,000 Issue shares to existing

shareholders at a ratio of 9:7 None
4th time: June 2021 10,500,500 1851008,000000 M cal s i St

shareholders at a ratio of 16:21

5th time: December 2021 5,500,000 240,000,000,000 Initial public offering
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BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
EVALUATION IN 2024

In 2024, Vietnam's economy took place in the context of
the world economy gradually recovering, global trade is still
unstable, facing many risks and uncertainties. Geopolitical
instability and military conflicts cause fluctuations in
gasoline prices, raw material prices, freight rates, prolonging
transportation and delivery times, creating pressure on
inflation, slowing global growth. Climate change, extreme
weather events, unfavorable crop conditions in major food
production areas lead to consecutive increases in world
food prices for many months ... However, in 2024, Vietnam's
economy is viewed quite positively, opportunities and risks
are balanced despite the difficult situations in the world.

The driving force for economic development comes from
import-export activities and public investment by the
Government in a series of key projects of the country, such
as: North-South Expressway, Long Thanh Airport....

In that context, the Board of Directors and all employees of
the Company have been proactive, making efforts to learn
and strive to overcome difficulties, turning challenges into
opportunities through implementing many innovative and
creative solutions, being decisive in management, and
proactively ensuring capital for production and business

activities.
) Implementation Implement/
Unit Plan 2024 2024 Plan
Revenue billion VND 600 802 133,6%
Profit after tax billion VND 18 18,03 100%

Progress the company has achieved:

The company has been interested in training to improve sales skills and qualifications through train-

ing courses for all sales staff.

Applying information technology in accounting work.

Regularly send technicians to the factory to learn about new product lines.

NOI1
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Factors affecting production and
business activities:
Real estate market overcomes
the most difficult period to
gain momentum for recovery
and development
Government  speeds up

progress on key national

projects
Exchange rates fluctuate
strongly, the US Central

Bank is cautious in reducing
interest rates, leading to the
USD exchange rateremaining
high.

Favorable: The Government

continues to promote public
investment, especially in highway,
airportandseaportprojects;Newreal
estate and industrial park projects
continue to be implemented,
increasing the demand for

construction  machinery rental.
Due to the high cost of purchasing
new machinery, many businesses
choose to lease equipment instead
of buying. The long-term lease

model combined with maintenance

is increasingly popular,
helping to optimize finances
for construction businesses.

s g """_"-’-ﬂ"“—
g -

Difficulties :

Despite signs of improvement,
many real estate projects are
still slow to progress due to
difficulties in funding. This
may reduce the demand for
construction machinery rental,
Machinery, cranes, construction
equipment have long life
cycles, but high maintenance
costs, requiring good asset
management. If customers use
them improperly, businesses may
incur unexpected repair costs.
Cheap imported used machinery
from China and Japan dilutes
the market, making it difficult to
maintain high rental prices.

NOI1 45
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE IMPROVEMENTS IN LABOR STRUCTURE,
Asset situation pOL|C|ES AND MANAGEM ENT

As of December 31, 2024, the Company's total assets are 539 billion VND . An increase of 101
billion VND comypared to the beginning of 2024, corresponding to an increase of 23.06 % .
Unit: billion VND

. Ty trong
Indicators 1/1/2024 31/12/2024 2024/2023
I/ Current assets 312.55 458.7 43.09%
h and h ival 5 Effectively apply regulations on information
Cash and cash equivalents 4706 105.5 124.24% ‘\
: : NAN disclosure on the stock market
___________________ =
Short-term financial investment 96.65 84.07 (12.50%)
Short-term receivables 49.24 83.3 71.21%
Inventories 1274 176.19 28.28% v 10 Organize training courses related to
, K& —— management, Enterprise Law, Securities Law
______________________________________________________________________________________________________ asd and current guiding Decrees and Circulars for
Other current assets 0171 9.6 5163.16% \ \ key staff to participate
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ \
I/ Non-current assets 1n7.9 78.97 (32.48%) "“"
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ , .‘.:
-
Long-term receivables 0.976 0.618 (36.68%) \ \/
_______________________________ ‘ Complete the Company's administrative
;:_ixed Acsots 8665 56.99 (69.77%) _ apparatus in accordance with the provisions of
' IR the Enterprise Law and corporate governance
""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" regulations for listed companies
Investment properties 30 30 0%
Long-term fixed assets in progress - 0.815 -
L_ ----- t ----- ¢ __ ------ '“I-'““"t“ . i i i Change and appoint a number of experienced
ong-term Tinancial investments  — and capable staff to ensure effective business
''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''' operations
Other non-current assets - - -
Total assets 438.46 537.73 22.63%
Source: NOI's 2024 audited financial statements
Payable Liabilities situation: —
Liabilities as of December 31,2024 are 223 billion VND, an increase of 93.2 billion VND compared
to the beginning of the year. Of which, Current liabilities as of December 31, 2024 is 220 billion
VND, Non-current liabilities as of December 31, 2024 is 2.7 billion VND.
NO1 NOI1
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FUTURE DEVELOPMENT PLANS

@]l Enhancing company's value

@3 Customer-centric approach

@5 Proactive governance

@2 Affirming a leading position

@4} Developing corporate culture

Explanation of the Board of Managers regarding the audit opinion (if any) -
(In case the audit opinion is not an unqualified opinion)

None

48
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EVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL REPONSIBILITY

ASSESSMENT

Assessment related to environmental
indicators

The company always has a high sense of
responsibility for environmental issues.
The company actively and proactively
implements many measures to protect the
environment and minimize negative impacts
on the surrounding environment.

All staff always fully comply with regulations
on environmental protection, energy and fuel
saving, proactively put forward initiatives, and
propose ideastothe company's management
on renewable and energy saving ideas.

Assessment related to labor issues

The rights of employees are always
guaranteed in the company. The company
always protects the rights of employees in
accordance with the provisions of the Labor
Law and signed labor contracts.

Assessment related to corporate
responsibility towards local communities
Over the years, the company has made
significant contributions to the local GDP.
At the same time, the company has created
jobs and maintained stable jobs for a large
number of workers in the locality and some
neighboring areas.

NO1 49
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BoD's assessment of the company overall's operation
Strategic plans and orientations

BoD's assessment of the Board of Managers'
performance

52

52

53




General assessment of eco-
nomic situation:

In 2024, business activities will
be greatly affected by the world
economic situation when central
banks of developed countries
increase interest rates to curb

However, there are also some positive
points, such as the Real Estate - Civil
Construction market is starting to
warm up, specifically, projects to build

apartments, houses, and social housing

g —————
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rising exchange rate

affected by the continuously

interest rates, wars, natural aretakingplaceinmanyplacesacrossthe
disasters and epidemics. country. The Government is determined
Domestic  situation: Strongly to promote basic construction activities

with many key national projects.

The company specializes in providing
machinery and equipment for
construction and installation activities,
so it also has supply contracts for key

projects across the country.
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Improve management capacity and
quality of human resources

D L

Orientation of business
implementation in the new phase
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FUTURE DEVELOPMENT PLANS

The Board of Directors has set the following key operational directions

Actively engage in comprehensive
digital transformation

Building a reputable, effective,
sustainable brand associated with
social responsibility

At the end of 2024, the macro economy recorded
many positive figures such as GDP growth,
total import-export turnover, FDI attraction and
inflation control, in the context of the exchange
rate continuing to be under pressure from the
strong USD. The stock market in the second half
of the year performed unfavorably with a sharp
decline in liquidity, the KRX trading system and the
market upgrade target not yet completed, and net
selling pressure from foreign investors continued.
However, the Company's business activities in
2024 achieved positive results, completing the
plan set by the General Meeting of Shareholders,
thanks to flexible strategic directions and timely
direction from the Board of Directors, helping 911
Group Joint Stock Company maintain stability and
improve competitiveness.
The Board of Directors acknowledges the
consistency in implementing the viewpoints of
“Customer-centricity” and “Increasing customer
experience and investment efficiency”. In 2024,
the Company will focus on consolidating existing
customer base and developing new customers
through appropriate competition programs and
policies, especially with key customer groups.
With the goal of increasing financial capacity:
the Company has synchronously and effectively
implemented solutions including increasing
equity capital through regular dividend payments.
Technology application: continues to be a bright
spot in 2024, reflecting the comprehensive digital
transformation orientation of 911 Group Joint Stock
Company.
Human resource organization: Human
resource organization in 2024 is implemented
in the right direction from promoting search,
recruitment, enhancing training to conducting
competency framework assessment, building
career development roadmap for each position.
Accordingly, a series of training programs are
held throughout the year, increasing both the
number of courses and average training hours
per employee, combining online, direct, workshop

and outsourced training forms.

In addition, salary and bonus policies, benefits and
emulation and reward programs always ensure
competitiveness, closely follow reality to help
promote working spirit, maximize the potential of
the team.

Operational support activities in 2024, with the

continuous improvement of professionalism,
proactiveness, improvement of internal service
quality, ensuring the stable, safe, efficient and

secure operation of the transaction system.

In summary:

The Board of Directors assessed
that 9ll's operations in 2024
demonstrated consistency and
efficiency, closely following the
orientation set by the Board of
Directors at the beginning of
the year. The results achieved
are a solid foundation for
the Company to continue to
develop sustainably, towards
creating a prosperous future
for shareholders, customers,
and employees, while making

positive contributions to the
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development of the economy,
financial market, community,
and society in the coming time.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

56 Board of Directors
60 Supervisory Board

61 Transactions, remuneration and benefits of the Board of
Directors, Board of Managers and Board of Supervisors

63 Evaluation of the implementation of corporate
governance regulations




BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Member of Board of Directors

Board members Position Numbenof Ownership No. Board Members Number of meetings  Attendance Reason for absence
owned shares ratio attended by the BoD rate
1 Mr. Luu Dinh Tuan (9 Chairman of BoD 5,000,000 28.83% Passed away and was
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 1 Mr. Luu Dinh Tuan 15/16 93,75% dismissed at the 2024
2 Mr. Nguyen Duc Hai Board Member 721,500 3.01% Extragrdinary General
. Meeting of Shareholders
3 Mr.Pham DinhThoan  Board Member 185,000 0TT% on November 23, 2024.
4 Mrs. Nguyen Thi Thom Board Member/ 598,000 2.49% g ir- Nguyen buc Hal 16716 1007 ,
Chairwoman ofBob . TTTTmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmTET .
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 3 Mr. Pham Dinh Thoan 16/16 100%
5 Mr.Nguyen Manh Hai Vice chairman of 1,350,500 563%
_________________________________________ B ?_[_)____________________________________________________________ Dismissed as a member
6 Mr. Nguyen Xuan Thanh \éloc[e) chairman of 2,347,111 9.78% zit?jnBeozazrszcgzzl rthtt(:z
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 4 Mrs. Nguyen Thi Thom 08/16 50% Annual General Meeting
7 Mr. Nguyen Van Bac Board Member 20,000 0.08% of Shareholders. Then
on November 23, elected
(*) Mr. Luu Dinh Tuan dismissed from the position of Chairman as a member of the
of the Board of Directors from November 23, 2024 Board of Directors at the
Extraordinary General
___________________ Meeting of Shareholders.
Subcommittees of the Board of Directors igﬁjgierTngéiiirzﬁ
None > Mr. Nguyen Manh Hai 0116 6,25% Meeting of Shareholders,
he was elected as a
List of Board of Directors members holding corporate governance training certificates. e .__._member Of the BOD.
List of Board of Directors members participating in corporate governance programs during the On November 23, 2024,
year: None at the 2024 Extraordinary
o ) 6 Mr. Nguyen Xuan Thanh 0116 6,25% General  Meeting  of
Activities of the Board of Directors Shareholders, he was
elected as a member of
Board of Directors meeting attendance theBoD.
In 2024, the Company's Board of Directors has made efforts to closely and promptly direct 7 Mr. Nguyen Van Bac 16/16 100%
and supervise the activities of the Board of Directors in implementing the strategic goals and
business production plans. Specifically: Board Resolutions/Decisions
The Board of Directors maintains regular operations in accordance with the provisions of
the Company Charter, ensuring the requirements on the number of meetings as well as In 2024, the Board of Directors also issued 16 resolutions, all of which were approved with a 100%
the number of members attending and the effectiveness of the meetings. unanimous vote. Details are as follows:
In 2024, the Board of Directors held 16 meetings, the meetings were conducted according
to procedures ensuring compliance with the provisions of the Enterprise Law and related
legal documents. Specifically:
NO1 NOI1
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No. Resolutions/ Approval 13 01/2024/NQ-HDQT-911 05/11/2024 Resolution on the record 100%

Date Contents

Decisions No. rate date for receiving 2023 cash
. . dividends
1 01/2024/NQ-HBQT-911 02/04/2024 Resolution on approving the go e RRREREEEEEEEE L
2024 business plan Resolution on disclosing
14 01/2024/NQ-HDQT-911 02/04/2024  4qditional Information and 100%

. L documents for the 2024
Resolution on the dismissal

Extraordinary General Meetin
2 02/2024/NQ-HDQT-911 12/04/2024 of the General Director and 100% ofSharehoIdsérs ?
Deputy General DG O e e
it Resolution on the
_____________________________________________________________ Positions 15 01/2024/NQ-HDQT-9TI 20/j2024  CSo0LON O 100%
Resolutionontheappointment . .
3 03/2024/NQ-HBQT-911 12/04/2024 of the General DFi)chtor and 100% Group Jo'mt Stock Company in
Deputy  General  DIireCtor e SR?QI"??_I ................ S
Positions ) : 53/11/2024 esolution on electing 100%
..................................................................... 16 01/2024/NQ-HBQT-911 3/11/20 the Chairwornan and  Vice 00%
4 04/2024/NQ-HDQT-91M 16/04/2024  Resolution on the extension of 100% Chairman of the Board of
the deadline for holding the Directors of 911 Group Joint

Resolutionontheappointment .
5  05/2024/NQ-HBQT-9M 06/05/2024 ¢ the Deputy General Director 100%

in charge of Finance and
Accounting

Resolution on finalizing the list

remaining term of 2020 - 2025

6 06/2024/NQ-HDQT-91 07/05/2024 of shareholders for the 2024 100%
Annual General Meeting of
_____________________________________________________________ Shareholders
5 07/2024/NQ-HDOT-OT 31/05/2024 Resolution gn the termination 100%
of the chief accountant
position of Ms. Nguyen Thi
N 111 A —
8 08/2024/NQ-HDQT-911 31/05/2024 Resolutionontheappointment 100% Lo %&c{f -
of Mr. Hoang Son Dang to the Activities of independent members
position of Chief Accountant of the Board of Directors
_____________________________________________________________________ T T T Independent members of the Board of Directors
9 09/2024/NQ-HDQT-9 25/06/2024 azs;);itr:(zjr;ntonajglifi(;téngﬁrar;. 100% have actively participated in the activities of the
to provide review services for Board of Directors of the company. The members
the semi-annual financial of the Board of Directors also provided objective
statement and audit services opinions with the aim of improving corporate
];(Ezgterr;tr?ts 2024 financial governance, while completing the tasks of the
'''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''' Board of Directors assigned by the General
10 10/2024/NQ-HDQT-OT 18/09/2024  Resolution on approving the 100% g of Shareholders gpedﬂcay“y:
?husyezsrsarﬁzlitse fk())LsztiTwis:a;)fIaorf Independentmembersofthe Board of Directors
for the second half of 2024 have properly performed their functions, duties
""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" Resolution on approving 7ot and powers
1 11/2024/NQ-HBQT-9T1 08/10/2024 the plan to organize the 100% . Independent Board members always fully
extraordinary General Meeting participate in Board meetings, as well as
of Shareholdersin2024 participate in supervising the activities of Board
Resolution on approving the o members, the Board of Directors and other
12 12/2024/NQ-HBQT-ST 21110/2024 signing of the contract for care 100% departments according to work assignments
sales and and battery leasing . Prepare an assessment report on the Board of
------------------------------------------------------------- SIS Directors' performance in accordance with the
NO1 NOI1
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SUPERVISORY BOARD

Members and structure of the Supervisory Board

Position Number of Ownership In 2024, the Board of Supervisors of 911 Group Joint Stock Company proactively carried
shares owned ratio - S .
out control activities to ensure that the company's activities comply with current laws and
1 Mrs. Tran Thi Kim Dung Head of BoS 0 0% regulations, the company's charter, etc.
2 Mrs. Le Thi Loan Member of BoS 0 0% The Board of Supervisors held two regular meetings and proposed the implementation of the
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- Board of Supervisors' supervisory tasks on financial activities and other approved target plans,
3 Mrs. Tran Ngoc Anh Member of BoS 0 0% and at the same time provided guidance on implementation methods in accordance with the
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ provisions of law.

4 Mrs. Dam Thi Viet Anh (**) Head of BoS 0 0%

________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS OF
5 Mrs.Luu Thi Kim Dung (**) Member of BoS 0 0% THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, BOARD OF MANAGERS
AND SUPERVISORY BOARD

(**) No longer a member of the Supervisory Board as of

Activities of the Supervisory Board June 22, 2024 Salary, rewards, remuneration, benefits
Number of r:t:g:::gds Attendarr;ct:: Votlar;g Reasons for absence No. Name Position Inco(\l;'\:Dz)Oer Note
Dismissed on June 22, Board of Directors
1 Mrs. Dam Thi Viet Anh 02/05 40% 100%  2024atthe2024Annual
General  Meeting  of 1 Mr. Luu Dinh Tuan Chairman of BoD 1176,241,000
Shareholders
Dismissed on June 22, 2 Mrs. Nguyen Thi Thom Chairman of BoD 125,269,000
2 Mrs. Luu Thi Kim Dung 02/05 40% 100% 2024atthe202§Annual _________________________________________________________________________________________________________
General Meeting of 2 Mr. Pham Dinh Thoan Board Member/ 527,059,000
Shareholders General Director
Appointed on June 30, 4 Mr. Nghiem Duc Thuan Board Member/Deputy
. 0, 0, .
3 Mrs. Le Thi Loan 05/05 100% 100% 5023 General Director
"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" Appointed on June 22, 5  Mr.Nguyen Duc Hai \é'gg Chairman of 754,736,000
4 Mrs. Tran Thi Kim Dung 03/05 60% 1009% 2024 at the 2024 AGM oo e TTSmTesssssssossesooscooocooooooo Jun
of Shareholders 6 Mr. Nguyen Xuan Thanh Vice Chairman of ) |'|ona
................................................................................................................ BoD election on
Appointed on June 22, 23/11/2024
2024atthe2024Annual e
[0) [0)
> Mrs. Tran Ngoc Anh 03/05 60% 100% General Meeting of 7 Mr. Nguyen Van Bac Board Member 199,538,000
Shareholders e
8 Mr. Nguyen Manh Hai Board Member 80,500,000

NOI1 el
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Insider stock transactions
Board of Managers

No. of shares owned No. of shares owned

Reasons for

No. Transaction Relationship

1 Mr. Vu Duc Dat General Director - Dismissed ST with internal __at the beginning at the end increasing,
04/12/2024 persons No. of No. of decreasing
"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" F-Z "f"'"(;'t"'.""'"""""""""""" shares shares
2  Mr.Pham Dinh Thoan General Director eterredtoin
the BoD section .
"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" 1 N Thi Chairman's
3 Mrs. Nguyen Thi Thom Deputy General  Referred toin guyen iht other-in- 601,250 2.5% 0 0% Sell 601,250 shares
Director the BoD section Thom law
4 Mr.Nghiem Duc Thuan  Deputy General — Referredtoin Brother-in-
d Director the BoD section 2 he Xuan law of the 749 250 312% 0 0% Sell 749,250 shares
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- oang .
, wife of the
5  Mr.Nguyen Trung Hieu Bierzlc‘l‘;c(})/r(:eneral 314,029,000 Chairman of
the Boarc_j ______________________________________________________________________________
Supervisory Board _ . ,
3 Ng‘uyen Thi Chalrmans 984 400 410% 1747900 728%  Buy 763,500 shares
Hai wife '
1 Mrs. Tran Thi Kimm Dung Head of BoS - APPOINtEd ON e
22/06/2024 .
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 4 Nghiem Board 22,500  0.09% 32,500  014%  Buy10,000 shares
. Duc Thuan Member
2  Mrs. Le Thi Loan Member of BoS 20,770,000
m e mmm e oo e o e S mmmSSmmmmsmsmoooos 5 Nguyen Thi Chairman of 0 0 598 000 2.49% Buy 598,000 shares
3 Mrs. Tran Ngoc Anh Member of BoS - ?Zg%'gféion Thom the Board 0% ’ e =38,
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ (Elected on
23/11/2024
4 Mrs. Dam Thi Viet Anh Member of BoS 116,500,000 s )
Chief Accountant Contracts or transactions with insiders
- None
1 Mrs. Nguyen Thi Thuy Chief Accountant - Resigned on
31/05/2024
e N T appointed on EVALUATION OF THE IMPLEMENTATION OF
31/05/2024 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REGULATIONS
In 2024, the Company strictly implemented Organize investor relations activities and
regulations on corporate governance such as effectively disclose information in accordance
information disclosure, organization building with legal regulations with the goal of
accordingtothe provisionsofthe Enterprise Law providing complete, accurate and timely
and promulgating regulations on information information in accordance with the provisions
disclosure on the stock market... In addition, of the Securities Law, regulations of the
] " the staff also regularly updated on changes Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange, and the
‘ 5F in legal regulations on governance. To ensure Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing
1 = € that the regulations on corporate governance Corporation (VSDC) to attract more attention
i\l are adjusted in accordance with current legal and investment from domestic and foreign
regulations. individuals and organizations.
AL &
e .
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

Sustainable development goals

Company's environmental and social impact
report




Recognizing the role of the environment
in production activities and aiming
for sustainable development, NOI
continuously introduces policies
to maintain the assessment of raw
materials, water sources, energy use, and
the impact of wastewater and waste on
the environment through controlling
inputs and outputs (emissions from the
operations of the office block and other
business blocks).

COMPANY'S ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL

IMPACT REPORT

a Environmental impacts

With the advantage of operating mainly in
the field of electric taxi service business,
the Company has reduced greenhouse gas
emissions compared to gasoline/diesel tax-
is. Electric taxis do not directly emit CO,,
SO,, NO,, helping to reduce air pollution
and the greenhouse effect.

Measures to reduce
environmental impact

The use of electric vehicle batteries will
lead to the mining of lithium... for batteries,
causing water and soil pollution, destroying
the ecosystem. At the same time, the repair
of machinery and equipment can cause
water and soil pollution if lubricants, cool-
ants, and cleaning solvents are not handled

properly.

Seek out and partner with electric vehicle
suppliers that have developed battery
recycling systems and use electricity from
renewable sources

Strictly control the treatment of lubricants
and electronic components, apply recycling
technology

Switch to electric or hybrid equipment,

_—@ control emissions, and perform regular

Mmaintenance to avoid fuel leaks

NOI1 &7
2024 Annual Report



Energy consumption

Electricity is mainly used by the company
for the purpose of operating machinery and
lighting in factories and offices. The company
is always aware of saving electricity according
to the National target program on saving
electricity. In addition, saving electricity
is also one of the measures to reduce the
production costs of the company. On average,
the company consumes about 38,000 kWh/
year. In the coming time, the company
will continue to promote the reduction
of electricity consumption by turning off
electrical equipment when not in use, using
energy-saving lighting systems, reviewing
machinery and electrical equipment for
maintenance and repair. To ensure that
machinery and equipment operate efficiently
and consume less energy.

Water consumption

Currently, the Company is using clean water
treated by a clean water treatment system
invested and equipped by the Company.
The average amount of water used in 2024
is 450m3 The Company conducts the
recycling and wastewater treatment process
in accordance with regulations. Does not
cause negative impacts on the surrounding
environment.

NOI1
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Energy saving initiatives:

Install light and motion sensors to
automatically turn off lights when no one
is around.

Use BMS (Building Management System)
to control and optimize electricity
consumption

Use printers and photocopiers with energy
saving mode

Use insulated glass doors and curtains to
reduce the load on air conditioning.
Convert old motor to high efficiency
motor, use inverter to adjust motor speed
Install smart metersto monitorand control
electricity consumption in real time.

Water saving initiatives:
Install sensor faucets and water-saving air
nozzles to reduce water usage while still
ensuring efficiency.
Check and promptly repair leaks from
pipes, faucets, toilets
Stick water saving reminder signs in hand
washing areas and toilets
Organize water saving awareness pro-
grams in enterprises
Check and maintain water pipes and
valves to avoid leaks.

Compliance with environmental
protection laws

The company has never been penalized
for non-compliance with environmental
laws and regulations.

The company directs and complies with
environmental protection measures for
its employees. Saves energy resources,
minimizes negative impacts on the
environment.

Employees policies

Working policies:
In accordance with the Labor Law, Company
employees are entitled to holidays, Tet, sick
leave, and maternity leave according to the
provisions of the Labor Code specifically:
12 days annual leave for people working in
normal conditions.
14 days annual leave for people working in
especially arduous and toxic conditions.
The numberofdaysoffincreasesaccording
to seniority at the Company. Every 5 years
of employment, an additional day off is
granted, and after 30 years or more, an
additional 6 days off is granted.
02 days off for New Year, 07 days off for
Lunar New Year, 01 day off for Hung Kings
Commemoration Day, 01 day off for April
30th holiday, O1 day off for International
Labor Day, 01 day off for National Day.
Working conditions:
Spacious, airy office, fully equipped with
tools and equipment to support work.
Employees who have to travel far due to
work requirements will receive a business
trip allowance and payment of travel and
accommodation expenses according to the
provisions of law.
Salary and bonus policies:
The Company's employees are entitled to
participate in and enjoy social insurance,
health insurance, and unemployment
insurance according to the provisions of law.
In addition, depending on their position, the
Company's employees also receive related

allowances. The Company's salary payment is
madeaccordingtotheprinciple ofdistribution
according to labor. What job. What position is
held, the salary is paid according to that job.
That position. The Company always ensures
to pay a satisfactory salary (no maximum
limit) to talented people. with professional
qualifications. technical and contributing a
lot to the unit. In order to create motivation,
encourage and motivate employees to
constantlystrivetoincrease labor productivity,
work quality, and complete assigned tasks
well. The payment of salary and bonus always
ensures democracy and transparency.
Employees traning activities:
The Company has established a training
regulation thatis publicly announced to all
employees in the Company. The training
regulation is built in accordance with the
requirementsofthejob. Laborrecruitment
is guaranteed to be public and fair
according to the regulations of the State.
Depending on the characteristics, social
conditions, and production requirements
of the Company in each period, when
balancing which under-skilled labor, the
Company will recruit that profession.
Each new employee of the Company
undergoes an integration training course
including: an overview of the company,
company culture, organizational chart,
a tour of the Company, instructions on
working facilities and conditions, etc.

Report on responsibility to local
communities

The Company isalways committed toworking
for the development of the community to
maintain sustainable development and
create a positive overall impact on the local
community. Employees at the Company work
in a safe environment, every individual hasthe
opportunity to develop. Not only building a
healthy working environment, the Company
is always proactive in promptly visiting sick
employees, those with serious illnesses,
encouraging, supporting, helping workers
and families in difficult circumstances.

NOI1 69
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911 GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Phu Duc 1 Village, Phu Dong Cammune, Gia Lam District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT’S REPORT

The Board of Management of 911 Group Joint Stock Company (brief of “‘the Company") has the pleasure in
presenting this report and the audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024.

1.

General information

911 Group Joint Stock Company (English name and abbreviation are 911 GROUP JSC), the
predecessor is 911 Foundation Equipment JSC. The company has been incorporated in accordance
with the Business Registration Certificate No. 0105207386 dated 22 March 2021 and other
amended certificates thereafter with the 10th change dated 25 February 2025 granted by Hanoi
City's Department of Planning and Investment to change legal representative of the company.

The charter capital as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2024 is VND 240,000,000,000.

Stock code; The company is listed on the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange (HOSE) with stock code
NO1.

The Company’s registered head office is at Phu Duc 1 Village, Phu Dong Commune, Gia Lam
District, Hanoi City, Vietnam.

The company’s business activities are:

- Wholesale of machinery, equipment and spare parts (mining and construction machinery;
electrical equipment, electrical materials, etc.);

- Wholesale of automobiles and other motor vehicles;

- Rental of other machinery, equipment and tangible goods;

-  Sale of spare parts and accessories of automobiles and other motor vehicles.

In 2024, the main business activities are wholesale of machinery, equipment.

The members of the Board of Management, the Supervisory Committee and Board of General
Directors

The Board of Management, Supervisory Committee and Board of General Directors of the Company
who held office during the year for fiscal year ended 31 December 2024 and to the date of this report
are.

The Board of Management

Name Position
Mr. Nguyen Manh Hai Chairman
Vice Chairman
Vice Chairman

Appointing date  Resigning Date
On 13/02/2025
On 23/11/2024

Mr. Nguyen Xuan Thanh On 23/11/2024

Mr. Luu Dinh Tuan Chairman On 23/11/2024
Ms. Nguyen Thi Thom Member — On 22/06/2024
Deputy General Director
Chairman On 23/11/2024 On 13/02/2025
Mr. Pham Dinh Theoan Member — General Director On 12/04/2024
Mr. Nguyen Duc Hai Member
Mr. Nguyen Van Bac Member

The Supervisory Committee

Name Position Appointing date  Resigning Date
Ms. Dam Thi Viet Anh Head On 22/06/2024
Ms. Tran Thi Kim Dung Head On 22/06/2024
Ms. Le Thi Loan Member On 30/06/2023
Ms. Tran Ngoc Anh Member On 22/06/2024
Ms. Luu Thi Kim Dung Member On 22/06/2024

Ms. Nguyen Thi Hong Hanh Member On 30/06/2023

911 GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Phu Duc 1 Village, Phu Dong Commune, Gia Lam District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT’S REPORT

Board of General Directors and Chief Accountant

Appointing date  Resigning Date
On 12/04/2024

Name Position

Mr. Vu Duc Dat General Director

Mr. Nghiem Duc Thuan Deputy General Director
Mr. Nguyen Trung Hieu Deputy General Director
Mr. Hoang Son Dang Chief Accountant

Ms. Doan Thi Loan Chief Accountant

Ms. Nguyen Thi Thuy Chief Accountant

On 12/04/2024
On 06/05/2024
On 31/05/2024
On 08/03/2025

On 08/03/2025
On 08/03/2025

On 31/05/2024
Legal representative

The legal representative persons of the Company whao held office during the year and to the date of
this report are Mr. Nguyen Manh Hai — Chairman.

The Company’s financial position and operating results

The Company's financial position as at 31 December 2024 and its operating result for the fiscal year
ended 31 December 2024 are presented in the accompanying financial statements.

Events subsequent to the balance sheet date

There have been no significant events occurring after the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
which would require adjustments or disclosures to be made in the financial statements.

Auditors

AFC Vietnam Auditing Co., Ltd has been appointed to audit the financial statements for the fiscal
year ended 31 Decemebr 2024,

Statement of the Board of General Director's responsibility in respect of the financial
statements

The Board of General Director is responsible for the financial statements for the fiscal year ended 31

December 2024 which gives a true and fair view of the state of affair of the Company and of its

results and cash flows for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024. In preparing those financial

statements, the Board of General Director is required to:

¢ Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

s Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

e State whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

¢ Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basic unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the Company will continue in business; and

e Design, implement and maintain the Company’s internal control for prevention and detection of
fraud and error.

The Board of General Director is responsible for ensuring that the proper accounting records are
kept which disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the Company
and to ensure that the accounting records comply with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards,
accounting regime for enterprises and legal regulations relating to financial reporting. The Board of
General Director is also responsible for controlling the assets of the Company and therefore has
taken the appropriate measures for the prevention and detection of fraud and the statutory
requirements relating to the preparation and presentation of financial statements.

The Board of General Director confirms that the Company has complied with the above
requirements in preparing the financial statements.



~ Cong ty TNHH Kiém Toan AFC Viét Nam @
911 GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY ~ AFC Vietnam Auditing Co., Ltd.
Phu Duc 1 Village, Phu Dong Commune, Gia Lam District, Hanoi City, Vietnam A Thanh vién 14p dodn PKE QuAc t6 ‘ﬁr
y -~ dp dodn LocG 1e
THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT'S REPORT — Member firm of PKF International
~ No: 165/2025/BCKT-HCM 01517
7. Approval of the financial statements
H
We hereby approve the accompanying financial statements which give a true and fair view of the -~ INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
financial position of Company as at 31 December 2024 and the results of its operations and cash .
fows of the Company for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024 in accordance with the ~ To: Shareholders _
Viethamese Accounting Standards accounting regime for enterprises and legal regulations relating . The Board of Management and Board of General Directors of

911 GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY

to financial reporting.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of 911 Group Joint Stock Company ('the
" Company”), prepared on 28 March 2025, as set out from page 06 to page 42, which comprise the
balance sheet as at 31 December 2024, and the income statement, the cash flow statement for the
year then ended and the Notes to the financial statements.

Board of General Directors’ responsibility

- . The Board of General Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements of company in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, accounting
regime for enterprises and legal regulations relating to financial reporting and for such internal control
as the Board of General Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial

Chairman a
Hanoi, 28 March 2025 _ statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
‘1 e Auditor's Responsibility -.‘71
/| 2
-~ Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
a conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards require Kif
4] that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable Cl
- assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. Y
< An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures y
-~ in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
~ error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
. Company’s preparation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
- effectiveness of the Company's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made

— . . - -
by the Board of General Directors, as well as evaluating the presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

- for our audit opinion.
Auditor’s Opinion

- In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of, in all material respects, the
financial position of 911 Group Joint Stock Company as at 31 December 2024, and of its financial

o~ performance and its cash flows for the fiscal year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese
Accounting Standards, accounting regime for enterprises and legal regulations relating to financial
reporting.

i

- Ho Chi Minh Gity Head Office » Tel: +84 28 2220 0237 » Fax: +84 28 2220 0265 « Email: pkf afchem@pklafovielnam.un

3 2F Indochina Park Tower + No. 4 Nguyen Dinh Chisu Street = Dakao Ward = District 1 » Ho Chi Minh City = Vietnam » Website! www.pkf.afcvietnam.vn
-~ PKF AFC Vietnam Auditing Co., Ltd. is a member of PKF Glabal, the network of member firms of PKF International Limited, each of which is a separate and Independent legal entity and does

not accept any respansibility or liability for the actions or inactions of any individual member or correspondent firm(s), 4
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" BALANCE SHEET
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued) ~ As at 31 Decmber 2024

Other matter
31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024

INDEX Code  Notes VND VND

The financial statements of 911 Group Joint Stock Company for the fiscal year ended 31 December
2023 were audited by another auditor and audited company. The auditor expressed an unmodified &

opinion on those financial statements on 15 March 2024. CURRENT ASSETS 100 458,760,647,718 320,556,511,000
) } Cash and cash equivalents 110 5.1 105,537,221,329 47,065,827,923
g Cash 111 18,491,431,627  23,277,600,520
/ Cash equivalents 112 87,045,789,702 23,788,227,403
p B s
N i Short-term financial investments 120 84,076,975,267 96,657,039,267
A e Trading securities 121 - 5
TRANG DAC NHA NGUYEN THI THANH MINH Provision for diminution in value of i i
Deputy G | Direct S trading securities 122
uty General Director e
Audit Practising Registration Certificate: Audit Practissing Registration Certificate: Held-to-maturity investments 123 52 64,078,910.207 #6,657,055,267
No: 2111-2023-009-1 No: 0068-2023-009-1
AFC VIETNAM AUDITING COMPANY LIMITED Short-term receivables 130 85900, 018,882  49.242,214,937
Ho Chi Minh City, 28 March 2025 = Short-term accounts receivable 131 53 36,420,519,244 26,979,482,619 -
I > Short-term advances to suppliers 132 5.4 20,239,682,924 15,249,959,089 19,
SN Short-term inter-company receivables 133 # = g
TNK Construction contract receivables i ) : T
T hased on progress billings 134 _:s
1y Receivable from short-term loans 135 : - N
Other short-term receivables 136 5.5 26,648,816,384 7,012,773,229 |
7 Provision for doubtful short-term debts 137 . = .
= Deficient assets pending resolution 139 = Z -
= 207
PJ Inventories 140 5.6 176,197,989,059 127,420,306,394
cd Inventories 141 177,784,424,016  127,420,306,394 NG
o Provision for devaluation in inventories 149 (1,586,434,857) . ; PH;
i POA
W Other short-term assets 150 9,639,443,511 171,122,479
™ Short-term prepayments 151 57 1,348,146,112 171,122 479 PO
Yy ==
= VAT deductibles 152 8,291,297,399 -
Other receivables from State budget 153 .
Transactions to buy, resell )
government bonds 154
Other short-term assets 155 5 -




911 GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
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BALANCE SHEET -
As at 31 Decmber 2024 -

”~ 911 GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Phu Duc 1 Village, Phu Dong Commune, Gia Lam District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 Decmber 2024

31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024 31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024

L i Cads . Notss VND VND . INDEX Code  Notes VND VND

NON-CURRENT-ASSETS 200 TRROAYAERL  ULIRGRT LIABILITIES 300 223,142,201,135  129,912,951,478

Long-term receivables 210 618,709,500 976,696,900 Current liabilities 310 220,365,727,846 123,030,116,979

IESQ%:E;?; pelg RS 211 = - Trade accounts payable 311 5.13 136,808,326,930 30,542,185,134

Long-term advances to suppliers 212 ) y Short-term advances from customers 312 5.14 23,951,710,900 24,784,346,864

Business capital in dependent units 213 ) i Taxes and payables to State budget 313 5.15 7,246,864,660 6,250,939,075

Loﬂg—térm inter-company receivables 214 i 4 Payables to employees 314 516 97,955,000 5321 G0E, A0

Receivable from long-term loans 215 - - Short-tarm accrued expenses gls 517 B3RaEREN Ll

Other long-term receivables 216 55 618,709,500 976,696,900 ghort;e‘rjrtri'sglr:lter-c;om?any pr:yaI::)Ies q 219 i )

Provision for doubtful long-term debt 219 = ™ o:;?o;ress bﬁm:é'gc B 317 - )

Fixed assets 220 26,994,218,117 86,658,295,591 Short-term unrealized revenues 318 . i

Tangible fixed assets 221 5.8 ;gl:ggi;gg; 22'3??;111;2 Other current payables 319 518 - 3,770,000,000

- Cost 222 410,049, G004, Short-term Ioans and finance lease

- Accumulated depreciation 223 (33,243,951,618)  (42,534,903,061) N liabilities 320 5.9 51,932,038,368 56,871,477,326

Finance leases fixed assets 224 5.9 7,821,5624,113 13,765,113,114 g Provision for short-term payables 321 z -

-Cost 2925 8,998,504,876 16,243,959,421 ; Bonus and welfare funds 322 o o

- Accumulated depreciation 296 (1,176,980,763) (2,478,846,307) \ Price Stabilization Fund 323 - -

Intangible fixed assets 297 510 - 45.510,771,350 M Transactions to buy, resell ) i

- Cost 208 64,395,000  45,564,395,000 Vi govemment bonds o

- Accumulated amortization 229 (64,395,000) (63,623,650) P Long-term liabilities 330 2.776,473,289 6,882,834,499

Investment property 230 511 30,000,000,000 30,000,000,000 N Long-term trade payables 131 . “

Cost N 231 30,000,000,000 30,000,000,000 985 Long-term advances from customers 332 -

Accumulated depre?latlon 232 : - TY\ Long-term accrued expenses 333 )

Long-term asset:s W pragiess 240 sl man T M Inter-company payables on capital 334 -

Long-termworks in pragress 241 i T Long-term payables to inter-company 335 -

Conaliiguen ) pig ees i iz HISRBRANT . Long-term unrealized revenues 336 -

Long-term financial investment 250 - - “.P\- Other long-term payables 337 _

Investment in subsidiaries 251 - = Long-term loans and finance lease

Investment in joint ventures, liabilities 338 5.19 2,776,473,289

'Iassoctiatesi — - ggg - i Convertible bonds 339 = -

Fr'.lr\;isisii.ginfosr Igil?ninirtigg ;r:evsalue of Preferred.shares i 40 ) i

long-term financial investments 254 . . Deferred income tax liabilities 341 = =

Long-term investments held to Provision for long-term payables 342 - —

maturity 255 B - Science and technology development i

Other non-current assets 260 20,542,034,883 275,900,586 fund 343

Long-term prepaid expenses 261 5.7 20,542,034,883 275,900,586

Deferred income tax asseis 262 - -

Long-term equipment, spare parts for

replacement 263 - -

Other non-current assets 268 - z

TOTAL ASSETS 270 537,731,5692,625 438,467,404,077
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911 GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY

; : L - : - 911 GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Phu Duc 1 Village, Phu Dong Commune, Gia Lam District, Hanoi City, Vietnam Phu Duc 1 Village, Phu Dong Commune, Gia Lam District, Hanoi City, Vietham
BALANGE SHEET a INCOME STATEMENT
As at 31 Decmber 2024 =

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
INDEX Code Notes VND VND Year 2024 Year 2023
INDEX Code Notes VND VND
EQUITY 400 314,589,391,490 308,554,452,599
Revenue from sales of goods and
Owner's equity 410 520  314,589,391,490  308,554,452,599 es e L. L 611,497.570,615
Owners' invested capital 411 240,000,000,000 240,000,000,000 Less deductions 02 = Z
- Ordinary shares with voting rights 411a 240,000,000,000 240,000,000,000 SN:rtvti's;:r:;ﬁdfgorgsales ot gonds snd 10 802,345,438,436 611,497,370,615
. P;::’ fad f‘hares 4;112‘} - ] Cost of goods sold 1M1 62 749,216,646,115 576,670,582,359
a surplus - - .
e i i ) ] S;;’vﬁze‘;":;‘r‘l;':’r’;‘dsa‘“ sfgoodsand o, 53,128,792,321 34,826,788,256
Other owner's capital 414 - - Financial income 21 6.3 16,136,856,747 37,533,647,597
Treasury stocks 415 - Financial expenses 22 6.4 11,827,320,121 23,892,818,532
Assets revaluation difference 416 E “ - in which: interest expense 23 5,011,264,093 10,452,326,525
Foreign exchange difference 417 3 - Selling expenses 25 6.5 15,177,370,850 9,428,906,975 yZ
Investment and development funds 418 - = General and administration expenses 26 6.6 18,738,577,590 19,116,579,232 {-_-f
Business arrangements support fund 419 - - Operating profit 30 23,522,380,507 19,922,131,114 ',/
Other owner's funds 420 = = Other income 31 6.7 1,329,890,050 1,993,847,659 |f
Retained earnings 421 74,589,391,490 68,554,452,599 Other expenses 32 6.8 1,146,371,981 663,450,247 \A
Retained earnings brought forward 421a 56,554,452,599 51,644,537,910 Profit from other activities 40 183,518,069 1,330,397,412
Retained earnings for the current year ~ 421b 18,034,938,891 16,908,914,689 Accounting profit before tax 50 23,705,898,576 21,252,528,526 N
Construction capital sources 422 2 o Current corporate income tax expenses 51 5.15 5,670,959,685 4,342 613,837 i
Deferred corporate income tax expenses 52 a = 052
Other resources and other funds 430 = Net profit after tax 60 18,034,938,891 16,909,914,689 :
Funds L 431 - Eamning per share 70 6.9 751 705 “ON
Funds for fixed assets acquisition 432 - COF
P#X
TOTAL RESOURCES 440 537,731,592,625
o
.
/ —W—
- DANG THI HUYEN NGOC DOAN THI LOAN

"

Chief Accountant Airma
Hanoi, 28 March 2025

Preparer

DOAN THI LOAN MANH HAI

Chief Accountant

DANG THI HUYEN NGOC i
Preparer Chairman

Hanoi, 28 March 2025 -~
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911 GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Phu Duc 1 Village, Phu Dong Commune, Gia Lam District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

CASH FLOW STATEMENT - INDIRECT METHOD

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

911 GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Phu Duc 1 Village, Phu Dong Commune, Gia Lam District, Hanoi City, Vietnam
CASH FLOW STATEMENT - INDIRECT METHOD

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

11

Year 2024 Year 2023 INDEX Code Year 2024 Year 2023

INDEX Code VND VND VND VND

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES o N

Net profit before tax 01 23,705,898,576 21,252,528,526 Cash inflow for issuing shares, receiving 31 i )

Adjustments for: contributed capital . _

Depreciation and amortisation 02 8,852,465,523 14,103,010,709 sct?j[;:(tgl Wi, Biying batk isaued 32 - 5

Provisions : i 03 1,586,434,957 B Proceeds from short-term borrowings 33 183,677,755,721 212,368,428,680

Foreign exchange (gains)/losses arising (8,959,001,188) (8,115,274,221) Repayment of borrowings 34 (186,977,486,107) (217,693,420,133)

from revaluation of monetary accounts 04 Renaymarit et oniigations untlar Bnance

(Gains)/losses from investing activities 05 (7,654,927,473) (29,845,651,495) ligecd 35 (5,746,069,782) (16,152,887,990)

Interest expense 06 5,011,264,093 10,452,326,525 Dividends and profit shared to the owners 36 (12,853,872,500) (12,000,000,000)

Other adjustments : 07 ) ) Net cash flows from financing activities 40 (21,899,672,668) (33,477,879,443)

Ope;?ting in_cto;ne before changes in ” 22,542,134,488 7,846,940,044

penona sapre ‘ 3 Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash

(Increase)/decrease in receivables 09 (42,000,113,614) 63,892,931,789 equivalents 50 58,471,311,703 7,976,389,792

{Increaze) desisase I INEMONES 10 (50,364,117,622) 24;111,708,564 Cash at beginning of the year 60 47,065,827,923 39,010,097,988

ngresselidecrense) I peyabies " 111,610,525.620 (677.587,533,068) Effect from changing foreign exchange rate 61 81,703 79,340,143

(Increase)/decrease in prepaid expenses 12 (21,443,157 ,930) 690,934,948

(Increase)/decrease in held-for-trading . Cash at end of the year 70 105,537,221,329 47,065,827,923

securities 13 -

Interest paid 14 (5,062,594,685) (10,572,485,105)

Corporate income tax paid 15 (5,252,613,837) (10,769,268,517)

Other cash inflow from operating activitives 16 : 2

Other cash outflow from operating ) = y Z_“_,—

activitives 17 - el _ /

Net cash flows from operating activities 20 9,930,062,426 (602,396,776,046) ar

GRSHTLOVS ERCMINVESTING ke DANG THI HUYEN NGOC DOAN THI LOAN

ACTIVITIES : s | - Preparer Chief Accountant

Cash outflow for purchasing and JAN March 2025

construction of fixed assets and other long- (1,5621,225,818) (3,145,187 444)

term assets 21

F_‘r’oceeds from disposal and liguidation of 53,052,272,726 19,699,629,629

fixed assets and other long-term assets 22

Cash outﬂ_ow for buying debt instruments of (72,388,5612,000) (170,008,993 613)

other entities 23

pash recovered from Iending‘, selling debt 84.968,576,000 769,564,954 346

instruments of other companies 24

Investment in other entities 25 - -

Withdrawals of investments in other entities 26 - -

Interest income 27 6,329,811,037 27,740,642 363

Net cash flows from investing activities 30 70,440,921,945 643,851,045,281
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911 GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Phu Duc 1 Village, Phu Dong Commune, Gia Lam District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

There notes form an integral part of and should be read along with the accompanying financial statements.

1

1.1.

1.2

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

GENERAL INFORMATION
Ownership

911 Group Joint Stock Company (English name and abbreviation are 911 GROUP JSC), the
predecessor is 911 Foundation Equipment JSC. The company has been incorporated in accordance
with the Business Registration Certificate No. 0105207386 dated 22 March 2021 and other amended
certificates thereafter with the latest one dated 25 February 2025 granted by Hanoi City's
Department of Planning and Investment to change legal representative of the company.

The charter capital as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2024 is VND 240,000,000,000.

Stock code: The company is listed on the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange (HOSE) with stock code
NO1.

The Company’s registered head office is at Phu Duc 1 Village, Phu Dong Commune, Gia Lam
District, Hanoi City, Vietnam.

Scope of operating activities

The Company operates in trading.

Line of business

The company’s business activities are:

- Wholesale of machinery, equipment and spare parts (mining and construction machinery,

electrical equipment, electrical materials, etc.);

- Wholesale of automobiles and other motor vehicles;

- Rental of other machinery, equipment and tangible goods;

- Sale of spare parts and accessories of automobiles and other motor vehicles. ),
4

In 2024, the main business activities are wholesale of machinery, equipment and spare parts. o
b

Business cycle T

Business cycle of the Company is not exceeding 12 months.

Structure of the Company

Dependent units of the Company without legal personality and following dependent

accounting:
Name Address

911 Group Joint Stock Company  Group 9, Tan Cang Quarter, Phuoc Tan Ward, Bien Hoa
- Dong Nai Branch City, Dong Nai Province, Vietnam

Comparative information on the financial statements

The figures are presented in the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2024
compared with the corresponding figures of 2023.
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911 GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Phu Duc 1 Village, Phu Dong Commune, Gia Lam District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

There notes form an integral part of and should be read along with the accompanying financial statements.

1.7.

2.1,

2.2

3.

3.2.

4.1

4.2

The number of the employees and employer

At as 31 December 2024, the Company has 43 employee (31 December 2023: 43 employee).
ACCOUNTING PERIOD AND ACCOUNTING CURRENCY

Financial year

The financial year of the Company is from 01 January to 31 December annually.

Accounting currency

The Company maintains its accounting records in Vietnamese Dong (VND) due to the revenues and
expenditures are made primarily by currency VND.

APPLICABLE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND REGIME
Applicable Accounting Standards and Regime

The Company’s financial statements comply with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese
Accounting Regime in accordant with the Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC, Circular No. 53/2016/TT-
BTC and existing guiding circulars issued by the Ministry of Finance in Vietnam in relating to the
preparation and presentation of financial statements.

Comply with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards and Vietnamese Accounting Regime

The Board of Managements is ensure that complied with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards and
Vietnamese Accounting Regime and the current legal regulations relating to the Circular No.
200/2014/TT-BTC on 22 December 2014, Circular No. 53/2016/TT-BTC on 21 March 2016 and as
well as the guiding implementation of Vietnamese Accounting Standards issued by the Ministry of
Finance in relating to the preparation and presentation of financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation the financial statements

The financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis (except for information relating to cash
flows).

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rate on the date of the transaction.
Balances of foreign currency monetary items at the end of the financial year are translated at the
exchange rate on that date.

Exchange differences incurred from transactions in currencies are recorded in financial income or
financial expense. Exchange differences incurred due to revaluation of accounts derived from foreign
currencies at year-end are recorded net amount after offsetting gain and loss on exchange
differences in financial income or financial expenses.

14
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911 GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Phu Duc 1 Village, Phu Dong Commune, Gia Lam District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

There notes form an integral part of and should be read along with the accompanying financial statements.

4.3

4.4

Exchange rate used for conversion of transactions in foreign currency is exchange rate at the time of
the transaction incurred. Real exchange rates for foreign currency transactions are defined as
follows:

e The real exchange rate used when trading foreign currency (spot contracts, forward contracts,
futures contracts, option contracts, swap contracts): exchange rate stated in the contract between
the Company and the bank.

s |[f the contract does not specify the exchange rate:
- For capital contributions or receiving capital: purchasing foreign exchange rate of the bank
where the company opened an account in order to get investors' capital at the date of
contribution.

- For debts: purchasing foreign exchange rate of commercial banks where the Company
customer specified to pay at the time of payment transactions.

- For liabilities: selling foreign exchange rate of commercial banks where the Company
expects to have the transaction at the time of transactions.

- For purchases of assets or expenses to be paid immediately in foreign currency (not using
accounts payable): purchasing foreign exchange rate of commercial banks where the
Company makes the payment.

The principles for determining real exchange rate upon re-determining accounts derived from foreign

currencies at the balance sheet date:

« For foreign currencies deposited in bank: buying exchange rate of the bank where the Company
opened foreign currency accounts.

« For foreign currencies classified as other assets: buying exchange rate of the bank where the
Company regularly conducts transactions.

« For foreign currencies classified as liabilities: selling exchange rate of the bank where the
Company regularly conducts transactions.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand, cash at banks (demand deposits). Cash equivalents are short-term
highly liquid investments with an original maturity of less than three months that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value.

Investments
Held to maturity investments

Investments are classified as held to maturity when the Company has the intent and to be ability to
hold to maturity. Held to maturity investments include term deposits (including treasury bills,
promissory notes), bonds, preference shares which the issuer is required to re-buy them in a certain
time in the future and held to maturity loans to earn profits periodically and other held to maturity
investments.

Held to maturity investments are initially recognized at cost including purchase price and the
expenses related to the purchase of the investments. After initial recognition, these investments are
recorded at their recoverable value. Interest income from held to maturity investments after the
acquisition date is recognized in income statement on an estimates basis. Income before Company
owns is deducted into the cost at acquisition.

When there is evidence surely about a part or all of the investment may be not recoverable and

having damage can be measured reliably, the loss is recognized in financial expenses in the year
and reduced direct investment values.

16

P :‘}//

-

.,

DOA

911 GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Phu Duc 1 Village, Phu Deng Commune, Gia Lam District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

There notes form an integral part of and should be read along with the accompanying financial statements.

4.5

4.6

4.7

Receivables
Trade and other receivables are stated at cost less provision for doubtful debts.

The classification of receivables is trade receivables, internal receivables and other receivables,

which is complied with the following principles:

« Trade receivables reflect the nature of the receivables arising from commercial transactions with
purchase - sale between the Company and an independent purchaser.

e Internal receivable reflects the receivable of the dependent units without having legal status, and
record dependent on the accounting.

e Other receivables reflect the nature of the receivables arising from non-commercial transactions,
and to be related to the purchase — sale transactions.

Increases and decreases to the provision balance are recognised as general and administration
expenses in the income statement.

Inventories
Inventories are presented at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

The cost of inventories is determined as follows:

» Materials and goods: comprising all costs of purchase and related expenses directly incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

» Finished goods: including the cost of materials, direct labour and general manufacturing costs
related to allocate on normal levels.

s Work-in-progress: just include the cost of raw materials.

Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price of inventory during the normal production
and business minus the estimated costs to completion and the estimated costs necessary to
consume them.,

Cost is determined on a weighted average method method and the perpetual method is used to
record inventories.

Provision for impairment of inventories is made for each inventory with the cost greater than the net
value realizable. For service in progress, the provision for impairment is calculated for each type of

service has a separate price. Increase or decrease in the balance of provision for impairment of
inventories should be set aside at the fiscal year end and is recognized in cost of goods sold.

Prepaid expenses

Prepaid expenses is used to record expenses actually incurred but they are related to operation
output of many accounting period and the transfer of these expenses to operating expenses of
subsequent accounting periods. Prepaid expenses include:

Tools and equipment

The tools and equipment have been put into use and are amortized to expense under the straight-
line method to time allocation from 2 to 48 months.

Brand licensing costs

Brand licensing costs are amortized to expense under the straight-line method to time allocation
during 60 months.
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911 GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Phu Duc 1 Village, Phu Dong Commune, Gia Lam District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

There notes form an integral part of and should be read along with the accompanying financial statements.

4.8

4.9

4.10

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The initial cost of a tangible
fixed asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditures for additions, improvements and
renewals are capitalised on fixed assets accounts, expenditures for maintenance and repairs are
charged to the income statement.

When assets are sold or retired, their cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the
balance sheet and any gain or loss resulting from their disposal is included in the income statement.

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
life of these assets, which are as follows:

Years
Buildings, structures 02 -05
Machinery and equipment 02 - 08
Transportation 05-10
Office equipment 03-05
Other 03-05

Finance lease of fixed assets

Leases fixed assets are classified as finance lease if the risks and benefits associated with
ownership of the property belongs to the lessee. Finance leases of fixed assets are shown at cost
less accumulated depreciation. Historical cost of finance lease fixed assets is the lower of the fair
value of the leased asset at the inception of the lease and the present value of minimum lease
payments. The discount rate used to calculate the present value of minimum lease payments for the
leased asset is the interest rate implicit in the lease of assets or the interest rate stated in the
contract. In case, there can be not identify the interest rate implicit in the lease contract, the use of
loan interest rate at the inception of the lease.

Fixed assets under finance leases are depreciated to the straight-line method over the estimated
useful life. In case, there is not surely, the Company will have ownership of the property when the
lease contract expires, the fixed assets will be depreciated over a shorter period between the lease
period and the estimated useful life. Years of fixed assets in financial leasing:

Years
Machinery and equipment 05— 11
Investment property

Investment properties including land use right, a building or a part of building, infrastructure held by
the company or by the lessee under a financial lease are used to earn rental or for capital
appreciation. Investment properties are determined by their historical costs less accumulated
depreciation. Historical cost of investment property includes all the expenses paid by the company or
the fair value of other consideration given to acquire the assets at the time of its acquisition or
construction.

Subsequent expenses relating to an investment property that have already been recognized should
be added to the net book value of the investment property when it is probable that future economic
benefits, in excess of the originally assessed standard of performance of the existing investment
property, will flow to the company.

When the investment property is sold, its historical cost and accumulated depreciation are write off,
the any gain(loss) arisen are posted into the income or the expenses.
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911 GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Phu Duc 1 Village, Phu Dong Commune, Gia Lam District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

There notes form an integral part of and should be read along with the accompanying financial statements.

4,11

412

4.13

The transfer from property owners or inventory using a real estate investment only when owners
cease using the property and begin operating lease to another party or at the end of the construction
phase . The transfer from investment property to property owners or inventory used only when the
owner began to use this asset or initiated for the purpose of sale. The transfer from investment
property to property for owner's using or inventories do not change the cost or value of the property
remaining at the date of conversion.

Real estate investments held for capital appreciation is not depreciated. Where there is strong
evidence showing the investment property held for capital appreciation being dropped against
market value and discounts can be measured reliably, the costs of the investment real estate held
for capital appreciation are reduced and losses are recorded in cost of sales.

Intangible fixed assets

Intangible fixed assets determined at the initial costs less amortization.

The initial cost of an intangible fixed asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Costs relating to
intangible assets incurred after initial recognition are recognized to the income statement, except for
costs which are related to the specific intangible assets and increase benefits economic from these
assets.

When assets are sold or liquidated, their cost and accumulated amortisation are removed from the
balance sheet and any gain or loss resulting from their disposal is included in the income statement.

The company’s intangible fixed assets include:

Computer software

The buying expenses of computer software which are not an integral part of related hardware are
capitalized. Initial cost of computer software includes all the expenses paid until the date the
software is put into use. Computer software is amortized in line with the straight-line method during

03 years.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress presents the cost of repairment of fixed assets, as well as the cost of _

unfinished construction (including interest expenses suitable for relevant accounting policies of the
Company). No depreciation is made on construction in progress until the relevant assels are
completed and put into use.

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accounts payable and accrued expenses are recognized for amounts to be paid in the future, which

related to receive the goods and services. Accrued expenses are recorded based on reasonable
estimates payment.
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911 GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Phu Duc 1 Village, Phu Dong Commune, Gia Lam District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

There notes form an integral part of and should be read along with the accompanying financial statements.

4,14

415

4.16

The classification of liabllities is payable to suppliers, accrued expenses, internal payables and other
payables, which complied with the following principles:

« Trade payables reflect the nature of the payables arising from commercial transactions with
purchase of goods, services, property between the Company and an independent sellers.

¢ Accrued expenses reflect the payables for goods and services received from the seller or
provided with the purchaser but have not been paid until having invoices or having insufficient
billing recards, accounting records, and payables to employees including salary, production costs,
sales must accruals.

e Internal payables reflect the payable between superior and subordinate units have no legal with
dependent accounting.

o Other payables reflects the nature of the payables of non-commercial, not related to the
purchase, sale, rendering service transanctions.

Capital

Owner’s equity

Capital is recorded according to the amount actually invested by shareholders.
Distribution of net profits

Profit after tax is distributed to shareholders after an appropriation of funds under the Charter of the
Company as same as the law and is approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

The distribution of profits to shareholders is considered to non-cash items in undistributed profit may
affect cash flow and ability to pay dividends as profit from revaluation of assets contributed as
capital, interest due to the revaluation of monetary items, the financial instruments and other non-
cash items.

Dividends are recognized as liabilities when approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.
Revenue
Revenue from sales of goods

Sale of merchandise shall be recognized if it simultaneously meets the following five (5) conditions:

« The enterprise has transferred the majority of risks and benefits associated with the right to own
the products or goods to the buyer;

« The enterprise no longer holds the right to manage the goods as the goods owner, or the right to
control the goods;

s Turnover has been determined with relative certainty;

o The enterprise has gained or will gain economic benefits from the good sale transaction; and

« ltis possible to determine the costs related to the goods sale transaction.
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Phu Duc 1 Village, Phu Dong Commune, Gia Lam District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

There notes form an integral part of and should be read along with the accompanying financial statements.
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4.18

4.19

Revenue from sales of service rendered

Revenue of a transaction involving the rendering of services is recognised when the outcome of
such transactions can be measured reliably. In case that a transaction involves the rendering of
services is attributable to several periods, revenue is recognised in each period by reference to the
percentage of completion of the transaction at the balance sheet date of that period. The outcome of
a fransaction can be measured reliably when all following conditions are satisfied:

« The amount of revenue can be measured reliably; When a contract provides that the buyer has
the right to return the purchased services under specific conditions, revenue is recognized only
when those specific conditions no longer exist and the buyer has no right to return the services
provided.

» |t is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the company;

» The percentage of completion of the transaction at the balance sheet date can be measured
reliably; and

s The costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured
reliably.

Interest

Interest is recognized on an accrual basis, are determined on the balance of cash in bank and the
actual interest rate for each period.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs include interest and other costs incurred directly related to the borrowings.

Borrowings costs are recognized as expenses when incurred. Where the borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of uncompleted assets requires a
substantial period (over 12 months) to get ready for use or sales, borrowing costs can be capitalized.
For specific loan serves the construction of fixed assets and real estate, interest is capitalized,
regardless the period of construction is less than 12 months. The income arising from the temporary
investment of the borrowings is deducted from the related asset.

Corporate income tax

Corporate income tax ("CIT") for the year comprises current income tax and deferred income tax.
Current income tax

Current income tax is the tax amount is calculated on taxable income. Taxable income is different
from accounting profit due to the adjustments of temporary differences between accounting and tax,
non-deductible expenses as well as adjusted income are not taxed and losses be transferred.

Tax settlement of the Company and its subsidiaries will be assessed by the Tax Department. Due to
the application of laws and regulations on taxes for different incurred transactions which can be
explained in many different ways, tax payable presented in the financial statements can be
immediately changed according to the decision of the tax authorities.

Earnings per share

Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit after tax attributable to shareholders holding
ordinary shares of the Company by the weighted average of the number of ordinary shares

outstanding during the period, not include shares repurchased by the Company and held as treasury
shares.
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4.20

4.21

Segment reporting

Business Segment: A separately identifiable part that engages in the production or supply of goods
or services and has risks and economic benefits distinct from other business segments.

Geographical Segment: A separately identifiable part that engages in the production or supply of
goods or services within a specific economic environment and has risks and economic benefits
distinct from business segments in other ecenomic environments.

Instrument
Financial assets

The classification of financial assets depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and
is determined at the time of initial recognition. Financial assets of the Company include cash and
cash eguivalents, investments, customer receivables, other receivables.

At the time of initial recognition, financial assets are determined at cost plus any costs directly
acquisition, issuance of such financial assets.

Financial Liabilities

The classification of financial liabilities depends on the nature and purpose of the financial liabilities
and is determined at the time of initial recognition. Financial liabilities of the Company include loans
and borrowings, payable to suppliers, accrued expenses and other payables.

At the time of initial recognition, financial liabilities are determined at cost plus costs directly issuance
of such financial liabilities.

Amortized cost is determined as the initially recognized value of the financial liability minus principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization calculated using the effective interest method
of the difference between the initial recognized value and the maturity value, minus any deductions
(either directly or through the use of a provision account) due to impairment or uncollectibility.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability or a
group of financial liabilities and allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash flows to be paid or
received over the expected life of the financial instrument, or a shorter period if necessary, to the net
present carrying amount of the financial liability.

Equity Instrument

An equity instrument is a contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company
after deducting all liabilities.
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4.22

5.1

Offsetting of financial instruments

The financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented on the
balance sheet, and if only:

o The Company has the legal right to offset the values were recognized;

e Tooffset on a basis to realize the asset and pay the liability simultaneously.

Related parties

Parties are considered a related party of the Company in case that party is able to control the
company or to cause material effects on the financial decisions as well as operations of the
Company. Parties are also considered related if they are subject to common control or common
significant influence.

When assessing related party relationships, the substance of the relationship is given more
emphasis than the legal form.

The following parties are known as the Company'’s related parties:

Relationship

Chairman of (Appointed on 13/02/2025)
Vice Chairman (Appointed on 23/11/2024)
Chairman (Dismissed on 23/11/2024)
General Director (Dismissed on 12/04/2024)
Chairman (Dismissed on 13/02/2025)
Member - General Director (Appointed on

Person

Mr. Nguyen Manh Hai
Mr. Nguyen Xuan Thanh
Mr. Luu Dinh Tuan

Mr. Vu Duc Dat

Ms. Nguyen Thi Thom
Mr. Pham Dinh Thoan

12/04/2024)

Mr. Nguyen Duc Hai Member

Mr. Nguyen Van Bac Member

Mr. Nghiem Duc Thuan Deputy General Directar (Appointed on
12/04/2024)

Mr. Nguyen Trung Hieu Deputy General Director (Appointed on
06/05/2024)

Head (Dismissed on 22/06/2024)
Head (Appointed on 22/08/2024)
Member (Appointed on 30/06/2023)
Member (Appointed on 22/06/2024)
Member (Dismissed on 22/08/2024)
Member (Dismissed on 30/06/2023)

Ms. Dam Thi Viet Anh

Ms. Tran Thi Kim Dung

Ms. Le Thi Loan

Ms. Tran Ngoc Anh

Ms. Luu Thi Kim Dung

Ms. Nguyen Thi Hong Hanh

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION TO ITEMS IN BALANCE SHEET

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand
Cash at banks
Cash equivalents (i)

31 Dec. 2024
VND

1,2568,911,427
17,232,520,200
87,045,789,702

01 Jan. 2024
VND

7,698,335,234
15,579,265,286
23,788,227,403

105,537,221,329

47,065,827,923
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Detail of foreign balance as at 31 December 2024 5.4 Short-term advances to suppliers
Original Equivalent to VND - 31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
VND VVND
Cash at banks - USD  8,618.44 218,129,837 -
8,618.44 218,129,837 - Advances to suppliers — other suppliers

9,949 826,235 -
3,980,000,000 -

Lonking Viét Nam Joint Stock Company
Call Me Corp .,.JSC

Vinfast Commercial And Services Trading
Limited Liability Company

(i) 01 to 03 month fixed-term deposits at Tien Phong Commercial Joint Stock Bank - Hoan Kiem -~
Branch, Military Commercial Joint Stock Bank and Prosperity And Growth Commercial Joint Stock
Bank. As at 31 Dec. 2024, these deposit contracts are being pledged as collateral to secure loans 2,000,000,000

1,230,000,000

arising at the respective banks, with a total value of VND 79,105,510,250. -~ Nga Phu Company Limited 1,464,000,000
_ UFO Vietnam Company Limited 1,185,000,000 -
5.2 Investments 365 Equipment ., JSC 150,000,000 7,350,312,998

2,727,125,675
3,942,520,416

- Shaanitonly Heavy Industries

Investments of the Company only includes held to maturity investments. Details of investments of Other suppliers 1,510,856,689

5.3

the Company are as follow: a ~20,239,682,924  15,249,959,089
Held to maturity investments 5.5 Other short-term, long-term receivables
31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024 = 5.5.1 Other short-term receivables ’//
Cost Book value Cost Book value v
VND VND VND VND -~ 31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024 '(-”
Short-term Amount Provision Amount Provision .
Term deposits (i) 84,076,075267  84,076,975,267  96,657,039,267  96,657,039,267 VND VND VND VND \'i
84,076,975,267 84,076,975,267 96,657,039,267 96,657,039,267 Related party 15,000,000,000 ) ) i \{L’

(i) Term deposit contracts from 06 months to 12 months at commercial banks are being used as
collateral to secure loans arising at the deposit bank.

Short-term trade receivables

31 Dec. 3}}23 01 Jan. Efﬂﬁg Bank - Thang Long
N : Branch (i) 1,102,000,000 : 4,417,423.750 a
. ¥ Military Joint Stock
Trade receivables — other customers - Commarcial Bank -
' i i o .
gggc;\rl‘:ﬁ r?ﬁ;?g;?rt;i?u?ef g'lf.?ut'zg;ment Joint iR : weatggnl;ol\ﬂngrﬁiﬁgcroggt 6,646,418,500 - 175,993,527 E
Slock Company 8,936,000,000 e Stock Commercial Bank
Dacinco Construction Investment Limited i (0 i 5 114 B84 001 =
Company 2,915,118,710 s : ; B
Trung Thanh Investment And Construction E‘S:‘nnﬁgf;gl”‘é’g:ﬁtﬂco"an
i 1,810,0 - y ;
BOF Viet tﬁfrﬁrgi?gruction Joint Stock RS Kiem Branch (1) 401,827,536 - 1,117,483,850 -
i 6 804.000.000 Advance to employee 2,430,246 672 - - 2
Sompary - sl Other receivables 1,068,223,676 ; 1,186,988,001

Vietnam Apatit Limited Company - 4,822,289,640
11,163,038,898 15,363,192,979

36,420,519,244 26,979,482,619

Other customers

23

Mr. Luu Dinh Tuan -
Advance payment for

work
Others

15,000,000,000
11,648,816,384

Prosperity and Growth
Commercial Joint Stock

7,012,773,229

26,648,816,384

7,012,773,229

(i) These are deposits to guarantee the implementation of loan contracts at commercial banks with a

value of VND 7,940,279 ,452.
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5.5.2 Other Long-term receivables

5.6

5.7

5.71

5.7.2

31 Dec, 2024
Amount Provision
VND VND
Deposits (i) 618,709,500 -
618,709,500 -

01 Jan. 2024
Amount Provision
VND VND
976,696,900 -

(i) These are long-term deposits at financial leasing companies to secure the execution of finance
lease contracts. Upon lease expiration and full fulfillment of obligations by the lessee under the
finance lease contract, the financial leasing company will refund the deposit to the lessee.

Inventories
31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
Cost Provision Cost Provision
VND VND VND VND
Raw materials 3,365,917 480 - 1,583,051,955 -
Tools and supplies - - 185,185,185 -
Work in progress 15,629,993,113 - 8,678,631,793 -
Goods 158,788,613, 423 (1,586,434,957) 116,973,437,461 -
177,784,424,016 (1,586,434,957) 127,420,306,394
Short-term, long-term prepaid expenses
Short-term prepaid expenses
31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
VND VND
Office Rentals 120,000,000 -
Warehouse Repair Costs 977,458,007 -
Other short-term prepaid expenses 250,688,105 171,122,479
1,348,146,112 171,122,479
Long-term prepaid expenses
31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
VND VND
Brand License Costs (*) 20,213,000,000 -
Tools and consumable expenditure 313,507,798 275,900,586
Other long-term prepaid expenses 15,527,085 =
20,542,034,883 275,900,586

(*) Pursuant to the contract dated 25 October 2024 and the certificate dated 01 November 2024 on

the use of the XCMG brand for 05 years.
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Increasel/decrease of tangible fixed assets

5.8

Office

Transportation

Machinery

Building,
structures

Total

Others

t
VND

equipmen

VND

VND

VND

VND

VND

Cost

27,009,063,272 424 855,000 422 258,273 69,817,314,188

40,305,141,253

1,755,995,390

As at 01 Jan. 2024
Increase in year

Disposal

5,697,544,011
(23,198,212,577)

93,600,000
(255,000,000)

711,026,909
(4,104,772,727)
23,615,317,454

4,892,917,102
(18,838,439,850)

260,859,273 52,416,645,622

424,855,000

26,359,618,505

1,755,995,390

As at 31 Dec. 2024

Accumulated depreciation

As at 01 Jan. 2024

13,012,837,281 374,235,898 422 258,273 42,534,5903,061

27,446,047,801

1,279,522,708

7,573,623,365
(16,864,574,808)

9,402,800

(255,000,000)

4,693,165,127 2,549,321,334 31,088,921
(4,104,772,727)

(12,504,802,081)

290,645,183

Depreciation in year

Disposal

11,457,385 888 405,324,819 176,662,073 33,243,951,618

19,634,410,947

1,570,167,891

As at 31 Dec. 2024

Net book value

27,382,411,127
19,172,694,004

13,996,225,991 50,619,102
12,157,931,566

12,859,093,352

476,472,682

As at 01 Jan. 2024

84,197,200

19,530,181

6,725,207,558

185,827,499

As at 31 Dec. 2024

As at 31 Dec. 2024, Cost of fixed tangible assets which are fully depreciated but still in use: VND 10,889,628,070.

As at 31 Dec. 2024, Tangible fixed assets with a carrying value of VND 12,401,825,922 were pledged to warranty loans.
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5.9

5.10

Increase/decrease of finance leasehold assets

Cost

As at 01 Jan. 2024

Repurchase finance leasehold assets
As at 31 Dec. 2024

Accumulated depreciation

As at 01 Jan. 2024

Depreciation in year

Repurchase finance leasehold assets
As at 31 Dec. 2024

Net book value
As at 01 Jan, 2024
As at 31 Dec. 2024

Increasel/decrease of intangible fixed assets

Cost

As at 01 Jan. 2024
Disposal

As at 31 Dec. 2024

Accumulated depreciation
As at 01 Jan. 2024
Depreciation in year

As at 31 Dec. 2024

Net book value
As at 01 Jan. 2024
As at 31 Dec. 2024

As at 31 Dec. 2024, cost of intangible fixed assets which are fully depreciated but still in use VND

€4,395,000.

Machinery
VND

Total
__VND

16,243,959 421
(7,245,454 545)

16,243,959,421
(7,245,454,545)

8,998,504,876

8,998,504,876

2,478,846,307
1,268,070,808
(2,569,936,352)

1,178,880, 180

13,765,113,114

2,478,846,307
1,268,070,808

(2,563,936,362)
1,176,980,763

13,765,113,114

7,821,524,113 7,821,524,113

Land use rights Software Total
IO 1.0 . VND VND
45,500,000,000 64,395,000 45,564,395,000
(45,500,000,000) - (45,500,000,000)
- 64,395,000 64,395,000

- 53,623,650 53,623,650

2 10,771,850 10,771,350

- 64,395,000 64,395,000

45,500,000,000 10,771,350  45,510,771,350
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511 Investment property is held for capital appreciation

Buildings and
land use rights Total
VND .11

Cost
As at 01 Jan. 2024
As at 31 Dec. 2024

0,000,000 000

. ..30,000,000,000
...30,000,000,000

30,000,000,000

Impairment (*}
As at 01 Jan. 2024 ¥ -
AS at 31 Dec- 2024 PRI O S S T PR VSt NPT RSPy " P —— S— S “...

Net book value
As at 01 Jan. 2024
As at 31 Dec. 2024

30,000,000,000
30,000,000,000

30,000,000,000
30,000,000,000

Investment property with net book value of VND 30,000,000,000 were pledged to warranty loans.

(*) This investment property is held for capital appreciation. The Board of General Directors
assessed the property as at 31 December 2024, and determined that there was no impairment as of
the date of issuing this financial report; therefore, no impairment estimate sion has been made.

5.12  Construction in progress
Transfer to
01 Jan. 2024 Increase in year  fixed assets 31 Dec. 2024
VND VND VND VND
Basic construction in progress - 1,527,009,316 (711,026,909) 815,982,407
5.13  Short-term accounts payables to suppliers
31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
Amount Payable amount Amount Payable amount
VND VND VND
Accounts payables

to other suppliers

Xuzhou

Construction

Machinery Group Im &

23,555,859,090

Ex (XCMG)

Northern Import &

Export JSC
Lonking (Fujian)

International Trade

Co., Ltd

Z-Ton Group Corp.

Other suppliers

90,290,512,298
16,374,363,636
11,509,889,982

2,299,590,000
16,333,971,014

80,290,512,298

16,374,363,636

11,509,889,982
2,299,590,000

136,808,326,930

136,808,326,930

23,555,859,090

2,5610,462,563
4,475,873,481

2,510,462,563

4,475 873,481

730,542,195,134

30,542,195,134
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5.14

5.15

Short-term advances from customers

Advance from other customers
Vincons Construction Development And

Investment Jsc

Vinacomin - Northern Coal Trading Joint

Stock Company

Thang Hai Construction And Trading Co., Ltd

Dacinco Construction Investment Limited

Company

Branch Of Komarc Games Viet Nam
Manufacturing Trading Service Co., Ltd

Mr. Do Van Chuc
Other suppliers

Taxes and amounts payables to the State Budget

Value added tax on
domestic goods

Value added tax on
imports

Import-export tax
Corporate income tax
Personal income tax
Fees, charges and other
payables

Total

Value added tax

01 Jan. 2024

Payable
VND

1,178,739,806

4,242,613,837
829,585,432

31 Dec. 2024
VND

14,359,018,500

2,095,000,000
1,810,000,000

5,687,692,000

23,951,710,900

01 Jan. 2024
VND

1,648,399 999

1,668,228,000
10,000,000,000

.11,467,718,865

 24,784,346,864

65,279,063,883

31,007,297 245
32,188,158 321
5,670,959,685
1,680,805,473

4,000,000

~ 6,250,939,075

103,764,314,444

Movement in the year

Paid/ Deducted

Payable in year

VND

in year
VND

64,916,069,072

31,097,297 245

88,158

5252,613,837
1,466,220,547

4,000,000

31 Dec. 2024

Payable
VND

1,541,734,617

4,660,959,685

1,044,170,358"
0

' 102,768,388,859

7,246,864,660

o

The Company paid value added tax payable under deduction method at the rate of 8% and 10%.

Export - Import duty

The Company declared and paid according to the notice of Customs.
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5.16

5.17

5.18

Corporate income tax

The Company is obliged to pay corporate income tax for taxable income at the rate of 20%.

Corporate income tax payable for the year is estimated as follows:

Accounting profit before tax
Adjustments to increase, decrease
accounting profit before tax to determine
taxable income:
Adjustments to increase
Non-deductible expenses
Gain exchange rate difference from
‘previous year
Adjustments to decrease
Gain exchange rate difference
Assessable income
Taxable income
Corporate income tax rate
Total corporate income tax payable

Year 2024
VND

23,706,898,576

4,648,899,849
4,648,981,552
3,062,546,595

1,586,434 957
(81,703)
(81,703)

Year 2023
VND

21,252,528,526
460,540,660

539,880,803
539,880,803

(79,340,143)
(79,340,143)

28,354,798,425
28,3564,798,425
20%

21,713,069,186
21,713,069,186
20%

5,670,959,685

4,342,613,837

Tax settlement of the Company and its subsidiaries will be assessed by the Tax Department. Due to
the application of laws and regulations on taxes for different incurred transactions which can be
explained in many different ways, tax payable presented in the financial statements can be
immediately changed according to the decision of the tax authorities.

Payables to employees

Salary payables

Short-term accrued expenses payable

Accrued interest payable

Other short-term payables

Other payables - other organisations and
individuals

Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank
Others

31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
VND VND
357,959,000 691,000,000
357,959,000 691,000,000
31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
VND VND
68,827,988 120,158,580
68,827,988 120,158,580
31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
VND VND

3,620,000,000

250,000,000

3,770,000,000
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519  Short-term, long-term loans and finance lease liabilities

5.19.1 Short-term loans and finance lease liabilities

Bank loans

Tien Phong Commercial Joint Stock
Bank (1)

Prosperity and Growth Commercial Joint
Stock Bank (2)

Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint
Stock Bank

Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock
Commercial Bank

Vietnam Investment and Development
Joint Stock Commercial Bank

Current portion of long-term loans
Tien Phong Commercial Joint Stock
Bank

Woori Bank Vietnam Limited

Asia Commercial Bank Leasing
Company Limited - Hanoi Branch
Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank
for Industry and Trade Limited
Chailease International Leasing
Company Limited - Hanoi Branch

31 Dec. 2024
Payable
Amount amount
VND VND

48,330,578,247 48,330,578,247

12,525,621,496 12,525,621,496

35,804,956,751 35,804,956,751

3,601,460,121 3,601,460,121

1,605,175,008 1,605,175,008

1,996,285,113 1,996,285,113

01 Jan. 2024
Payable
Amount amount
VND VND

49,513,512,017 49,513,512,017
18,676,445,650 18,676,445,650

1,138,250,772 1,138,250,772
12,906,815,595 12,906,815,585

16,792,000,000 16,7982,000,000
7,357,965,309 7,357,965,309

1,605,175,008 1,605,175,008
340,810,821 340,810,821

3,387,504 480 3,387,504,480
1,060,875,000 1,060,875,000

963,600,000 963,600,000

51,932,038,368 51,932,038,368

56,871,477,326 56,871,477,326

Details of arising in short-term loans and finance lease liabilities during the year are as follows:

Transfer from

long-term
loans and
01 Jan. 2024 Incurred in year liabilities Paid in year 31 Dec. 2024
VND VND VND WND VND
Short-term
loans from
banks 49,513,512,017  183,677,755,721 - (184,860,689 491) 48,330,578,247
Current
portion of
long-term
loans 7,357,965,309 - 3913,757,733 _ (7,670,262,921) 3,601,460 121

56,871,477,326

183,677,755,721

3,913,757,733 (192,530,952,412) 51,932,038,368
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5.19.2 Long-term loans and finance lease liabilities

3111212024
Payable
Amount amount
VND VND

Long-term loans and finance
lease liabilities - other
organisations and

individuals 2,776,473,289 2,776,473,289
Tien Phong Commercial Joint
Stock Bank (3) 1,348,014,561 1,348,014,561

Woori Bank Vietnam Limited - -
Asia Commercial Bank
Leasing Company Limited -
Hanoi Branch (4)
Chailease International
Leasing Company Limited -
Hanoi Branch

1,428,458,728 1,428,458,728

01/01/2024
Payable
Amount amount
VND VND
6,882,834,499 6,882,834,499

2,953,189,569
170,810,787

3,737,041,453

21,792,690

2,953,189 569
170,810,787

3,737,041,453

2.776,473,289 2,776,473,289

' 6,882,834,499

6,882,834,499

..21,792,690

Total financial lease paid are as follows:

Year 2024

Principal paid
Interest paid
Finance lease paid

Year 2023

Principal paid
Interest paid
Finance lease paid

Over1to5
years
VND

5,746,069,782

618,341,230

~ 6,364,411,012

Total
VND

5,746,069,782

618,341,230
6,364,411,012

16,152,887,990
1,293,554,919

16,152,887,990
1,293,554,919

17,446,442,909

17,446,442,909

Details of arising in long-term loans and finance lease liabilities are as follows;
Transfer to short-

Loans repaid
01 Jan. 2024 in year
VND VND

Long-term loans from
banks 3,124,000,356
Finance lease liabilities 3,758 834,143

(170,810,787)
(21,792,690)

term loans and
liabilities
VND

(1,605,175,008)
(2,308,582, 725)

31 Dec. 2024
VND

1,348,014,561
1,428,458,728

6,882,834,499  (192,603,477)

(3,913,757,733)

2,776,473,289
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911 GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Phu Duc 1 Village, Phu Dong Commune, Gia Lam District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

There notes farm an integral part of and should be read along with the accompanying financial statements.
Details of the loans are as follows:

(1) A lean under Credit Limit Agreement No. 198/2024/HDTD/TTKD HKM dated 29 May 2024 from
Tien Phong Commercial Joint Stock Bank.

Credit line: VND 250,000,000,000.

Purpose: Supplementing working capital to serve the commercial business activities
of construction machinery, specialized vehicles/machines of customers.

Loan term: 12 months from the date of signing the loan contract.

Interest rate: According to the loan acknowledgment.

Mortgage: Mortgage with the company's assets including vehicle.

(2) A loan under Credit Limit Agreement No. 215.032/24/DN dated 15 April 2024 from Prosperity
and Growth Commercial Joint Stock Bank:

Credit line: VND 70,000,000,000.

Purpose: Supplementing working capital and issuing L/C, issuing guarantees (except
loan guarantees).

Loan term: 12 months from the disbursement date.

Interest rate: According to the loan acknowledgment.

Mortgage: Mortgage of land use rights at plots 63, 64, map sheet 34 in Phuoc Tan

ward, Bien Hoa city, Dong Nai province.

(3) A loan from loan contract No. 244/2022/HDTD/TTKD HKM dated 30 September 2022, No.
208/2022/HDTD/TTKD HKM dated 14 September 2022, No. 277/2023/HDTD/TTKD HKM dated
04 October 2023 and No. 248/2022/HDTD/TTKD HKM dated 04 October 2022 from Tien Phong
Commercial Joint Stock Bank:

Credit line: VIND 6,420,700,000.

Purpose: Purchase a car for business purposes.

Loan term: 48 months.

Interest rate: 10% - 12.45%/year.

Mortgage: Mortgage with assets formed from loan capital.

(4) A loan under financial leasing contract No. 02,2023/HDCTTC-911 dated 15 February 2023 from
Asia Commercial Bank Leasing Company Limited - Hanoi Branch:

Purpose: HUYNDAI Concrete Pump.
Credit line: VND 4,542 ,697,500.
Purpose: Concrete pump.

Loan term: 24 Months.

This is a loan under financial leasing contract No, 14.1223/HDCTTC-811 dated December 21,
2023 from Asia Commercial Bank Leasing Company Limited - Hanoi Branch.

Purpose: MERCEDES-BENZ Concrete Pump
Credit line: VND 4,285 360,000.

Purpose: Concrete Pump.

Loan term: 24 Months.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

There notes form an integral part of and should be read along with the accompanying financial statements.

5.20

Owners’ equity

5.20.1 The table of equity fluctuation

Owners' invested

capital Retained earnings Total
VND VND VND
Year 2023
As at 01 Jan 2023 240,000,000,000 63,644,537,910 303,644,537,910
Profit - 16,909,914,689 16,909,914,689
Dividends payable . (12,000,000,000)  (12,000,000,000)
As at 31 Dec. 2023 ____240,000,000,000 __  68,554,452,599  308,554,452,589
Year 2024
As at 01 Jan 2024 240,000,000,000 68,554,452,599 308,554,452,599
Profit in year - 18,034,938,891 18,034,938,891
Dividends payable - (12,000,000,000) (12,000,000,000)
As at 31 Dec. 2024 240,000,000,000 74,689,391,490  314,589,391,490

5.20.2 Detail of owners’ invested capitial

5.20.3

5.20.4

Shareholders 31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
VND Rate (%) VND Rate (%)
Mr. Luu Dinh Tuan 50,000,000,000 20.83% 50,000,000,000 20.83%
Mr. Nguyen Xuan Thanh 22,809,110,000 9.50% - 0.00%
Ms. Nguyen Thi Hai 17,479,000,000 7.28% - 0.00%
Mr. Nguyen Manh Hai 13,505,000,000 5.63% - 0.00%
Mirae Asset Daewoo Co.,Itd 12,949,000,000 5.40% - 0.00%
Other 123,257,890,000 51.36% 190,000,000,000 79.17%
240,000,000,000 100% 240,000,000,000 100%
Shares
31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
Registered number of issued shares 24,000,000 24,000,000
Number of shares sold to the public 24,000,000 24 000,000
Ordinary shares 24,000,000 24,000,000
Number of shares in circulation 24,000,000 24,000,000
Ordinary shares 24,000,000 24,000,000

Par value of shares in circulation is VND 10,000.

Profits distribution

According to Resolution No. 01/2024/NQ-HPQT-911 dated 22 June 2024, the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders for the fiscal year 2023 approved the profit distribution plan. The company
has distributed profits in accordance with the Resolution as follows:

VND
Dividends: 12,000,000,000
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911 GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Phu Duc 1 Village, Phu Dong Commune, Gia Lam District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

There notes form an integral part of and should be read along with the accompanying financial statements.

5.21

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

Off balance sheet items

Foreign currencies

U.S Dollar (USD)

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR ITEMS IN THE INCOME STATEMENT

Gross sales of merchandise and services

Revenue from sale of goods
Revenue from rendering services

Cost of goods sold

Cost of merchandise sold
Cost of provided services
Provision for inventory

Financial income

Interest on term deposits

Gains from exchange differences

Foreign exchange gains due to revaluation of
menetary assets and liabilities denominated
in fareign currencies

Financial expenses

Interest expenses
Foreign exchange losses

31 Dec. 2024

8.618.44

Year 2024
VND

799,512,249,691
2,833,188,745

01 Jan. 2024

9,066.21

Year 2023
VND

606,851,150,073
4,546,220,542

~ 802,345,438,436

611,497,370,615

Year 2024
WVND

742,193,960,583
5,436,250,575
1,586,434,957

749,216,646,115

Year 2023
VND

566,641,676,940
10,029,005,419

~ 576,670,582,359

Year 2024
VND

6,329,811,037
853,402,192

..8,953,643,518

'16,136,856,747

Year 2023
VND

28,233,438,040
1,184,935,336

__8,115,274,221
37,533,647,597

Year 2024
VND

5,011,264,093

11,827,320,121

Year 2023
VND

10,452,326,525

13,440,492,007

23,892,818,532
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911 GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Phu Duc 1 Village, Phu Dong Commune, Gia Lam District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

There notes form an integral part of and should be read along with the accompanying financial statements.

6.5 Selling expenses

Staff cost

Cost of materials
Depreciation cost
Product warranty
Services expense
Other costs

6.6 General and administrative expenses

Staff cost

Stationary cost
Depreciation cost
Taxes, fees and charges
Services expense

Other costs

6.7 Other income

Disposal of fixed assets

Income from late payment of contracts

Other

6.8 Other expenses

Tax penalty

Depreciation costs not matching revenue
Penalties for late delivery of goods

Other

Year 2024
VND

8,715,972,000
366,368,666
560,232,700
844,462 481
4,236,352,195
463,982,808

Year 2023
VND

6,299,679,000
202,989,028
551,232,700
638,252,547
1,670,889,093
65,864,607

15,177,370,850

9,428,906,975

Year 2024
VND

4,459,219,926

413,409,648
1,942,687,311
2,662,989,414
7,661,176,018
1,699,095,273

Year 2023
VND

4,901,916,633
968,293,379
1,746,799,119
2,887,088,765
8,592,491,236
19,990,100

18,738,577,590

19,116,579,232

Year 2024
VND

1,325,116,436

4,773,614

Year 2023
VND

1,612,213,455
374,351,700

1,329,890,050

1,993,847,659

Year 2024
VND

569,915,654
487,712,498

118,743,829

1,146,371,981

Year 2023
VND

73,425,619
466,434,505
123,569,444

.. 20,589
663,450,247
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911 GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Phu Due 1 Village, Phu Dong Commune, Gia Lam District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

There notes form an integral part of and should be read along with the accompanying financial statements.

6.9 Earnings per share

Year 2024
VND

Income after tax 18,034,938,891
The adjusted increase of accounting profit to
determine profit attributable to shareholders
holding ordinary shares: -
Profit used to calculate basic earnings per
share 18,034,938,891
Weighted average number of ordinary

Year 2023
VND

16,809,914,689

16,909,914,689

shares circulating during the year 24,000,000 24,000,000
Earnings per share 751 705
6.10 Production cost according to factors
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
Cost of raw materials 13,175,191,926 11,201,595,633
Staff cost 732,360,009,866 479,201,138,607
Depreciation cost 8,384,753,025 12,397,623,730
QOutside services rendered 72,917,328,625 75,745,039,622
Other cost ....5072,993,778 3,025,396,705
831,910,277,220 581,570,794,297
7. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION TO ITEMS IN THE CASH FLOW
7.1 Cash and cash equivalent holded by the Company but cannot be used
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
Cash and cash equivalent (i) 87,045,789,702 23,788,227,403
(i) 1-3 month fixed-term deposits at Tien Phong Commercial Joint Stock Bank - Hoan Kiem Branch,
Military Commercial Joint Stock Bank, and Prosperity And Growth Commercial Joint Stock Bank.
These deposit contracts are being pledged as collateral to secure loans arising at the respective
banks, with a total value of VND 79,105,510,250.
7.2 Proceeds from loans

Year 2024
VND

Proceeds from borrowings under normal

contract 183,677,755,721

Year 2023
VND

212,368,428,680
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911 GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Phu Duc 1 Village, Phu Dong Commune, Gia Lam District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

There notes form an integral part of and should be read along with the accompanying financial statements.

7.3 Cash repayments of loans

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND

Cash repayment of loans from borrowings

under normal contract

Repayment of obligations under finance

leased _ (5,746,069,782)
(192,723,555,889)

(186,977,486,107) (217,693,420,133)

(16,152,887,990)
(233,846,308,123)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company may have financial assets such as loans, trade receivables and other receivables,
cash and short-term deposits that arise directly from the operations of the company. In addition, the
Company has also issued convertible bonds [apply in each case] in order to gather the financial
resources to serve the investing activities. The financial liabilities of the Company mainly consist of
bonds, loans, trade payables and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to
gather the financial resources to serve the activities of the Company.

The company incurs from market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Operational risk management is indispensable operations for the entire business operations of the
Company. The company has developed a control system to ensure balance at a reasonable level
between the costs when incurred risk and risk management costs. The Board of General Directors
continually monitors the risk management process to ensure the right balance between risk and risk
control.

The Board of General Directors considered and uniformly applied policies to manage each of these
risks are summarized below:

i,  Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk has four types of risk: interest rate risk, currency
risk, goods price risk and other price risk, such as share price risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Market risk for changes in interest rates of the
Company primarily correlates to cash, short term deposits, bonds, and loans [to apply in each case]
of the Company.

The company manages interest rate risk by analyzing the competitive situation in the market to
acquire beneficial interest for company’s purposes, but still remain within the limits of their risk
management.

Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of a financial instrument

will fluctuate because of changes in exchange rates. The Company incurs the risk of changes in
exchange rates, which are directly related to the business operations of the company.
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911 GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Phu Duc 1 Village, Phu Dong Commune, Gia Lam District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

There notes form an integral part of and should be read along with the accompanying financial statements.

i, Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party of a financial instrument or contract not performing its obligations,
resulting in financial losses. The Company has credit risk from its operating activities (primarily for
trade receivables account), and from its financial activities, including bank deposits, foreign
exchange transactions and the other financial instruments.

Trade receivables

The company regularly keeps track of the receivables, which is not yet collected. For big customers,
the Company considered the decline in the credit quality of each customer at the reporting date. The
company seeks the way to remained the tight control of the receivables and arranging credit control
staff to minimize credit risk. On this basis and the trade receivables of the Company related to
various customers, credit risk is not significantly concentrated in a certain customer.

Cash in bank

The company mainly maintained deposit balances at wel-know banks in Vietnam. Credit risk of the
deposit balances at banks is managed by the treasury department of the Company the company's
policies. The maximum credit risk of the Company for the items on the balance sheet at the end of
the financial year is the value book presented in Note 5.1. The company found that the level of
concentration of credit risk on bank deposits is low.

Less than 1 From1ito5s

year years Total

VND VND VND
As at 31 December 2024
Cash and cash equivalents 105,537,221,329 - 105,537,221,329
Held to maturity investments 84 076,975,267 - 84,078,975,267
Trade receivables 36,420,519,244 - 36,420,519,244
Other receivables 9,218,569,712 618,709,500 9,.837,279,212

235,253,285,552 618,709,500 235,871,995,052

As at 01 January 2024
Cash and cash equivalents
Held to maturity investments
Trade receivables

Other receivables

47,065,827,923
96,657,039,267

47,065,827,923

96,657,039,267 -
26,979,482,619 - 26,979,482,619
976,696,900 _ 7,989,470,129
976,696,900 178,691,819,938

177,715,123,038

iii.  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in implementing their financial
obligations due to lack of funds. Liquidity risk of the company mainly arises from maturity
mismatches of financial assets and financial liabilities. Company minimizes the liquidity risk by
maintaining an amount of cash and cash eqguivalents and bank loans at a level that the board of
directors believes it is sufficient to meet the company's operations and minimize the risks due to the

volatility of cash flows.
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Phu Duc 1 Village, Phu Dong Commune, Gia Lam District, Hanoi City, Vietnam
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

There notes form an integral part of and should be read along with the accompanying financial statements.

The table below summarizes the maturity of the financial liabilities of the Company based on
expected payments on undiscounted basic contracts:

Less than 1 From1to5
year years Total
VND VND VND
As at 31 December 2024
Loans and debts 51,932,038,368 2,776,473,289  54,708,511,657

136,808,326,930 136,808,326,930
68,827,988 ¢

....... 68,827,988
188.809.193.286

Trade payables
Other payable and accrued expenses

2.776,473,289 191,585,666,575

As at 01 January 2024

Loans and debts

Trade payables

Other payable and accrued expenses

56,871,477,326  6,882,834,499
30,542,195,134 .
3,890,158,580
91,303,831,040

63,754,311,825
30,542,195,134
3,890,158,580
98,186,665,539

'6,882,834,499

The company said that the level of concentration risk for the repayment is low. The company is
sufficient to approach to the necessary capital.

iv. Fair value

The table below presents the carrying amount and fair value of the financial instruments presented in
the Company's financial statements:

Fair value
31 Dec. 2024

Carrying amount
31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024

Financial assets

01 Jan. 2024

105,537,221,329
84,076,975,267

Cash and cash equivalents

Held to maturity investments
Related parties receivables 36,420,519,244
Other receivables 9,837,279,212

47,065,827,923
96,657,039,267
26,979,482,619

7,989,470,129

105,537,221,329  7,065,827,923
84,076,075,267 96,657,039,267
36,420,519,244 26,979,482,619
9,837,279,212 _ 7,989,470,129

Total 235,871,995,052

178,691,819,938

235,871,995,052 178,691,819,938

Financial liabilities

63,754,311,825
30,542,195,134

54,708,511,657
136,808,326,930
68,827,988

Borrowing 54,708,511,657
Trade payables 136,808,326,930
Other payable 68,827,988
Total 191,585,666,575

98,186,665,539

191,585,666,575

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities is reflected at the value at which the financial
instruments could be exchanged in a current transaction between market participants, excluding
cases of forced sale or liquidation.

The Company has not remeasured its financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value, as Circular
210/2009/TT-BTC dated 06 November 2009, issued by the Ministry of Finance, as well as other
prevailing regulations, have not provided specific guidance on determining fair value. As at 01
January 2024, and 31 December 2024, the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
approximates their carrying amounts. The Board of General Director believes that the fair value of
these financial assets and liabilities does not materially differ from their carrying amounts as of the
financial year-end.
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911 GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Phu Duc 1 Village, Phu Dong Commune, Gia Lam District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

There notes form an integral part of and should be read along with the accompanying financial statements.

9.

9.1

9.1.1

OTHER INFORMATION
Transactions and balances with related parties

The related parties with the Company include key management members, the individuals involved
with key management members and other related parties.

Transactions and balances with key management members, the individuals involved with key
management members

The key management members include members of the The Board of Management, Supervisory
Committee, Board of General Director and Chief Accountant. Individuals associated with key
management members are close members in the family of key management members.The
Company had no incurred sales and services rendered transactions as well as other transactions
with key management member and individuals related to key management members.

At the end of the fiscal year, the Company had no debts with key management members and
individuals related to key management members.

Income of key management members

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
Nguyen Manh Hai Chairman (appointed 80,500,000 -
13/02/2025)
Luu Dinh Tuan Chairman (resigned 1,176,241,000 352,001,000
23/11/2024)
Vu Duc Dat General Director (resigned 105,000,000 394,804,000
12/04/2024)
Nguyen Thi Thom Chairman (resigned 125,269,000 304,069,000
13/02/2025)
Pham Dinh Thoan Member - General Director 527,059,000 445,643,500
(appointed 12/04/2024)
Nguyen Duc Hai Member 754,736,000 606,723,000
Nguyen Van Bac Member 199,638,000 199,710,000
Nghiem Duc Thuan  Deputy General Director 446,098,000 -
(appointed 12/04/2024)
Nguyen Trung Hieu  Deputy General Director 341,029,000
(appointed 06/06/2024)
Dam Thi Viet Anh Head (resigned 116,500,000 376,730,500
22/06/2024)
Le Thi Loan Member (appointed 20,770,000 -
30/06/2023)

9.1.2 Transactions and balances with other related parties

Transactions with other related parties:

Year 2024 Year 2023

VND VND

Mr. Luu Dinh Tuan - Advance payment for work 15,000,000,000 -
41
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Phu Duc 1 Village, Phu Dong Commune, Gia Lam District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

There notes form an integral part of and should be read along with the accompanying financial statements.

Balances with other related parties:.

31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan 2024
VND VND
Mr. Luu Dinh Tuan - Advance payment for work 15,000,000,000 -

The Company is engaged in the wholesale trading of machinery and equipment and operates solely
in Vietnam. There is no distinction in risks and economic benefits among different segments;
therefore, the Company does not present segment reporting by business sector or geographical

The Company will continue its operations in the future.

There have been no significant events occurring after the balance sheet date (31 December 2024)
which would require adjustments or disclosures to be made in the financial statements.

9.2 Segment reporting
area,
9.3 Going concern
9.4 Post balance sheet events
9.5 Other information

According to the Board of Directors' Resolution No. 12/2024/NQ-HDQT-911 dated 21 October 2024,
the Company has entered into a sales contract for automobiles and a battery leasing service
agreement with VinFast Trading and Service Company Limited, with a total contract value of VND
44 999 683,824. The contract has been executed starting from Q4 2024.

According to the Board of Directors' Resolution No. 01/2025/NQ-HDQT-911 dated 14 January 2025,
the Company contributed capital to establish 911 Group Future Transportation and Services Joint
Stock Company with a charter capital of VND 20,000,000,000, of which the Company contributed
VND 13,000,000,000, representing 65% of the charter capital.

M,

Ve

DANG THI HUYEN NGOC
Preparer

DOAN THI LOAN
Chief Accountant
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911 GROUP JOINT STOCK COMANY

Add: Cl4, HHO4, Viet Hung Urban area, Long
Bien, Hanoi

Ra Tel: (+84) 944 911 911

B Email: info@911group.comyn

@ Website: https://911group.com.vn/
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